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We hereby submit the Directors' Report of Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – "Shufersal" or "the Company") for
the year 2016 (hereinafter – "2016" or "the reporting period")1, in accordance with the Securities Regulations
(Periodic and Immediate Reports), 1970, (hereinafter –"the reporting regulations"). Shufersal together with
its subsidiaries and associate companies are hereinafter called “the Shufersal Group” or “the Group”.

1.

Explanations of the Board to the State of the Company's Affairs

1.1

Principal data regarding the business affairs of the Company

Shufersal is the owner of the largest supermarket chain in Israel, which operates 272 branches throughout the
country in a few formats over a total area of approximately 503 thousand square meters. The Company employs
about 12.4 thousand employees (calculated positions) and has annual sales of about NIS 11.8 billion. As at
December 31, 2016 and the date of issuing this report, the controlling shareholder of the Company is Discount
Investment Corporation Ltd.
1.1.1

Description of operating segments reported as business segments in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company

The Company operates in three operating segments that are reported as business segments in the Company’s
financial statements, the retail segment, the real estate segment and the loyalty program credit card management
segment
For details regarding the aforesaid operating segments, see Note 32 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for 2016 (hereinafter – “the financial statements”).
1.1.2

Management’s discussion of principal results for 2016
The Company’s results were affected by several matters:








The Company continued to accelerate the development of its digital platforms, mainly the
“Shufersal Online” system, including opening dedicated storage facilities for that platform. In
2016, the significant growth of sales through Shufersal Online continued, and the sales constituted
about 9% of the Company’s total sales (compared with 6% in 2015).
Continued development and strengthening of the private label. This year, the private label
accounted for 20% of all retail sales, which is a significant increase relative to that metric in 2015
(15% of total retail sales).
Real estate streamlining continued.
Phase in of a new logistics center in Shoham, which began operating in February 2016. For details
on the Company’s distribution system see Section 8.15 of Part A of the periodic report.
The Company continued to adjust its activity to changes in the food retail market, including in
connection with the sale of the Mega chain.
Repayment of most outstanding Series B bonds through an exchange offer, replacing Series B
bonds of the Company by allocating Series E and Series F bonds (as discussed in note 1b(6) and
1b(7) to the financial statements). The above exchange offers contributed to a flattening of the
Company maturities in coming years relative to outstanding bonds. See also paragraph 1.3.4 below.

1

For purposes of this report, “the reporting date” or “the date of the report” is the date of the statement of financial position
(December 31, 2016) unless stated otherwise or implied otherwise by the context of the matter.
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1.1.3

Dividend
In April 2016, the Company distributed a dividend in the amount of NIS 100 million. On February 21,
2017, subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position, the Company’s Board of Directors
declared the distribution of a cash dividend in the total amount of NIS 160 million. The said dividend
did not require court approval, and as at the date of this report it has not yet been paid. See Note 34.B to
the financial statements for details.
As at December 31, 2016, the Company’s “profits” for purposes of the profit test pursuant to
Section 302 of the Companies Law, 1999 (“the Companies Law”) amounted to about NIS 502 million,
where a dividend distribution by the Company, to the extent the Company’s Board of Directors decides
to make such a distribution, will be in accordance with the Companies Law and subject to the
distribution conditions provided therein, to the restrictions provided in the terms of the debentures that
were issued by the Company (see Section 5 hereunder and Note 17 to the financial statements) and to all
other provisions of law.
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1.2

Analysis of the Results of Operations

1.2.1

Analysis of the results for 2016 as compared to 2015
Results of operations
2016
2015
%
NIS millions
% NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating income (loss) before
other income
Other income (expenses), net
Increase in fair value and gain on sale
of investment property, net
Operating income (loss) after
other income
Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of investee accounted for
under the equity method
Profit (loss) before taxes on income

25.6%

11,842
3,037

24.2%

11,505
2,789

22.1%

(2,618)

21.9%

(2,515)

3.5%

419
1

2.4%

274
3

26

9

446
(118)

286
(87)

2
330

199

Taxes on income

(68)

(46)

Profit (loss) for the year

262

153

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 11,798 million in 2016 compared with NIS 11,456 million in the
previous year, a 3.0% increase, mainly driven by developments in the food retail market. Store sales in 2016
increased by 3.8% compared to 2015. The difference between the growth in revenue and in sales is mainly
attributed to increase of franchiser activity2.
Same store3 sales increased by 4.4%. The increase was mainly driven by changes in basket of products and
special offer mix, and changes in food retail market.
The sales per square meter4 in 2016 were NIS 23,884, compared with NIS 22,299 in the previous year, an
increase of 7.1% that is mainly due to a reduction in selling areas.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 170 million in 2016, compared with NIS 180 million in the
previous year, a 5.6% decrease due to reduction of the inventory of properties and tenants.
Revenues from the loyalty program credit card management segment amounted to NIS 75 million in 2016,
compared with NIS 67 million in the previous year, an increase of 11.9%.
The Company’s revenues amounted to NIS 11,842 million in 2016 compared with NIS 11,505 million in the
previous year, an increase of 2.9%, mainly driven by the retail segment.

2

See paragraph 3.1 of Part A (Description of Business Affairs) of the periodic report.
Same stores – stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
4
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas.
6
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Gross profit amounted to NIS 3,037 million in 2016 compared with NIS 2,789 million in the previous year, an
increase of NIS 248 million. The gross profit rate was 25.6% in 2016 compared with 24.2% in the previous
year. The increase in gross profit and gross profit rate is mainly due to an increase in franchise activity in the
Company5, private label growth, improvement of commercial terms, elements in the shopping basket, special
offer mix and more streamlined operations following the business plan (see note 1(b)(1) to the financial
statements).
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 2,618 million in 2016 compared
with NIS 2,515 million in the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues was 22.1% compared with 21.9%
in the previous year. The increase in expenses was driven by increased activity and an increase in payroll
expenses, including minimum wages.
The operating income before other income in the retail segment amounted to NIS 306 million in 2016, at a
rate of 2.6%, compared with NIS 151 million and a rate of 1.3% in the previous year, which was due to the
aforesaid.
The operating income before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 136 million in 2016
compared with NIS 149 million in the previous year. The decrease was mainly driven by a decrease in rent
revenue and increase in maintenance expenses relating to properties of the real estate segment.
The operating income before other income in the loyalty program credit card management segment
amounted to NIS 47 million in 2016 compared with NIS 44 million in the previous year.
The Company’s operating income after other income amounted to NIS 446 million in 2016 and to a rate of
3.8% of revenue, compared with NIS 286 million and 2.5% of revenue in the previous year, an increase of
NIS 160 million that is due to the aforesaid.
The operating income before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 707 million and a
rate of 6.0% in 2016, compared with NIS 542 million and a rate of 4.7% in the previous year. The increase is
mainly due to the improvement in operating income as aforesaid.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 118 million and a rate of 1.0% in 2016, compared with NIS 87
million and a rate of 0.8% in the previous year. The increase in net financing expenses was mainly driven by a
decrease of CPI in 2016 at a slower pace than the decrease in CPI in the previous year. In addition, this was
driven by cancellation of impairment of a loan to an associate and capitalization of borrowing costs in the
previous year, see note 27 to the financial statements.
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 68 million in 2016, compared with income from taxes of NIS 46 million in the
previous year. The increase is mainly due to improvement in income before tax as a result of the aforesaid, and
on the other hand, a decrease of tax expenses by NIS 8 million, arising from a decrease of tax rates.
The profit amounted to NIS 262 million in 2016, compared with a loss of NIS 153 million in the previous year.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 1.23 in 2016, compared with basic
and diluted loss per share of NIS 0.71 in the previous year.

5

See paragraph 3.1 in Part A (Description of Business Affairs) of the periodic report.
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1.2.2

Analysis of the results for 2015 as compared to 2014
Results of operations
2015
%
NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating income before other income
Other expenses
Increase in fair value and gain on sale
of investment property, net

2014
% NIS millions

24.2%

11,505
2,789

22.8%

11,602
2,648

21.9%

(2,515)

23.2%

(2,695)

2.4%

274
3

(0.4%)

(47)
(1)

9

12

Operating income after other income
Financing expenses, net
Profit (loss) before taxes on income

286
(87)
199

(36)
(103)
(139)

Taxes on income

(46)

32

Profit (loss) for the year

153

(107)

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 11,456 million in 2015 compared with NIS 11,553 million in the
previous year, a decrease of 0.8%. Conversely, there was no change in the Company’s turnover as compared to
2014. The decrease in revenues is mainly due to an increase in the activity of franchisers6.
Same store7 sales increased by 0.4%.
The sales per square meter8 in 2015 were NIS 22,299, compared with NIS 21,400 in 2014, an increase of 4.2%
that is mainly due to a reduction in selling areas.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 180 million in 2015, compared with NIS 178 million in 2014,
an increase of 1.1%.
Revenues from the loyalty program credit card management segment amounted to NIS 67 million in 2015,
compared with NIS 63 million in 2014, an increase of 6.3%.
The Company’s revenues amounted to NIS 11,505 million in 2015 compared with NIS 11,602 million in 2014,
a decrease of 0.8%, as a result of the aforesaid.

6

The Company has agreements with a number of franchisers who operate various sale stands in the Company’s stores and
pay the Company a fee from the total amount of sales attributable to the sale stands operated by those franchisers.
7
Same stores – stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
8
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas.
8
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The gross profit amounted to NIS 2,789 million in 2015 compared with NIS 2,648 million in 2014, an increase
of NIS 141 million. The gross profit rate was 24.2% in 2015 compared with 22.8% in 2014. The increase in the
amount of the gross profit and in its rate is mainly due to an improvement in trade terms, a change in the mix of
the franchisers, an increase in the share of the private label and an increase in efficiency following
implementation of the business plan.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 2,515 million in 2015 compared
with NIS 2,695 million in 2014. The ratio of expenses to revenues was 21.9% compared with 23.2% in 2014.
The decrease in expenses was mainly due to shutting down and reducing the size of branches, an increase in
efficiency and non-recurring expenses in 2014.
The operating income before other income in the retail segment amounted to NIS 151 million in 2015, a rate
of 1.3%, compared with a loss of NIS 171 million and a rate of 1.5% in 2014, an increase of NIS 322 million
that is due to the aforesaid.
The operating income before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 149 million in 2015
compared with NIS 148 million in 2014.
The operating income before other income in the loyalty program credit card management segment
amounted to NIS 44 million in 2015 compared with NIS 37 million in 2014.
The Company’s operating income after other income amounted to NIS 286 million in 2015 and to a rate of
2.5% of revenues, compared with a loss of NIS 36 million and 0.3% of revenues in 2014, an increase of NIS
322 million that is due to the aforesaid.
The operating income before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 542 million and a
rate of 4.7% in 2015, compared with NIS 344 million and a rate of 3% in the previous year. The increase is
mainly due to the improvement in operating income as aforesaid.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 87 million and a rate of 0.8% in 2015, compared with NIS 103
million and a rate of 0.9% in the previous year. The decrease is mainly due to the CPI decreasing at a higher rate
in 2015 than in 2014. Moreover, the financing expenses decreased following a decrease in the Company’s total
debt. Conversely, there was a decrease in interest income from securities in which the Company invests its
monetary balances mainly because of the Company selling its securities portfolio in the first quarter of the year.
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 46 million in 2015, compared with income from taxes of NIS 32 million in
2014. The increase is mainly due to improvement in the profit before tax as a result of the aforesaid.
The profit amounted to NIS 153 million in 2015, compared with a loss of NIS 107 million in 2014.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 0.71 in 2015, compared with basic
and diluted loss per share of NIS 0.52 in 2014.

9
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1.2.3

Analysis of the results for the three months ended December 31, 2016 compared with the
corresponding period of the previous year

%
Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative and
general expenses
Operating income before other income
Other income
Increase in value of investment property
Operating income after other income
Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of investee accounted for
under the equity method
Profit before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Income for the period

Results of operations
Q4 2016
Q4 2015
%
NIS millions
NIS millions

26.4%
22.7%
3.7%

2,868
757
(652)
105
1
24
130
(23)
2

25.5%

2,923
746

22.4%
3.1%

109
(13)
96

(654)
92
3
4
99
(2)
97
(20)
77

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 2,858 million in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 2,911 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, a decrease of about 1.8%. Sales of the Company in Q4 of the year
decreased by 2.3% vs. the corresponding quarter. Neutralizing seasonal effect (the Jewish holiday high season),
sales increased by 1.1%.
Same store9 sales with respect to stores that operated fully in Q4/2016 and in the corresponding quarter of the
previous year decreased by 2.4%. Excluding seasonal effects, sales increased by 1.1%.
The sales per square meter10 amounted to NIS 5,777 in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 5,799 in the corresponding
quarter of the previous year, a decrease of 0.4% that is mainly due to a reduction in sales due to the timing of
Jewish holiday high season against commerce space downsizing.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 42 million in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 47 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, a reduction of 10.6%, due to a reduction in inventory of property
and tenants.
Revenues from the loyalty program credit card management segment amounted to NIS 20 million in
Q4/2016 compared to NIS 17 million, like in the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The Company’s revenues amounted to NIS 2,868 million in Q4/2016 compared with NIS 2,923 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, a decrease of about 1.9%.
The Company’s gross profit amounted to NIS 757 million in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 746 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 11 million. The gross profit rate was 26.4% in
Q4/2016, compared with 25.5% in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase in the amount of
the gross profit and gross profit rate is mainly due to an increase in franchisers11, an increase in the share of the

9

Same stores – stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the
branch is the gross area including selling areas and additional operating areas.
11
See paragraph 3.1 in Part A (Description of Business Affairs) of the periodic report.
11
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private label, improved trade terms, shopping basket, special offer mix, greater efficiency following
implementation of the business plan (see note 1(b)(1) to the financial statements).
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 652 million in Q4/2016, compared
with NIS 654 million in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues was
22.7% compared with 22.4% in the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The operating income before other income in the retail segment amounted to NIS 78 million in Q4/2016, a
rate of 2.7%, compared with NIS 60 million and a rate of 2.0% in the corresponding quarter of the previous
year, an increase of NIS 18 million that is due to the aforementioned.
The operating income before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 33 million in
Q4/2016, compared with NIS 38 million in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The decrease in
income was mainly driven by lower revenue.
The operating income before other income in the loyalty program credit card management segment
amounted to NIS 12 million compared to NIS 11 million in Q4/2016 in the corresponding quarter of the
previous year.
The Company’s operating income after other income amounted to NIS 130 million and a rate of 4.5% in
Q4/2016, compared with NIS 99 million and a rate of 3.4% in the corresponding quarter of the previous year, an
increase of NIS 31 million that is due to the aforementioned, mainly from an increase in gross profit and an
increase in the fair value of investment property.
The operating income before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 182 million and a
rate of 6.3% in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 164 million and a rate of 5.6% in the corresponding quarter of the
previous year.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 23 million in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 2 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase is mainly due to the CPI decreasing at a slower pace in
Q4/2016. Moreover, from recording income from cancellation of impairment of a loan to an associate in the
corresponding quarter last year.
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 13 million in Q4/2016, compared with NIS 20 million in the corresponding
quarter of the previous year. The decrease is mainly due to change in tax rates.
The income for the period amounted to NIS 96 million in Q4/2016 compared with NIS 77 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 0.45 in Q4/2016, compared with
NIS 0.35 in the corresponding quarter of the previous year.

11

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Shufersal Ltd.

1.2.4 Condensed consolidated income statement and consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for 2016 by quarters and for the fourth quarter of 2015 (in NIS millions)
Total for
the year

Fourth
quarter

2016
Third
quarter

Second
quarter

First
quarter

2015
Fourth
quarter

11,842
3,037

2,868
757

3,042
771

3,072
765

2,860
744

2,923
746

(2,618)

(652)

(667)

(649)

(650)

(654)

419

105

104

116

94

92

26
1

24
1

-

1
-

1
-

4
3

446
(118)

130
(23)

104
(39)

117
(35)

95
(21)

99
(2)

Profit before taxes on income

2
330

2
109

65

82

74

97

Taxes on income

(68)

(13)

(14)

(20)

(21)

(20)

Income for the period

262

96

51

62

53

77

2

4

(2)

-

-

-

2

4

(2)

-

-

-

(11)

(1)

3

(6)

(7)

-

6

-

-

-

6

-

-

-

(1)

1

-

-

(5)

(1)

2

(5)

(1)

-

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating income before other
income
Increase in fair value
and gain on sale of investment
property, net
Other income
Operating income after other
income
Financing expenses, net*

Share in profit of investee
accounted for under the equity
method

Other comprehensive income (loss)
items that were initially recognized
in comprehensive income and were
or will be recycled to profit or loss
The effective portion of the share in
fair value of instruments used for
cash flow hedging
Total other comprehensive income
(loss) for the period that after
initial recognition in comprehensive
income was or will recycled to
profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss)
items not recycled to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined
benefit plan
Revaluation reserve for property, plant
and equipment classified as
investment property
Taxes on items of other
comprehensive income that will not
be recycled to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income
loss for the period not recycled to
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profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive income
for the period

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
The Company’s owners
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income
for the period

(3)

3

-

(5)

(1)

-

259

99

51

57

52

77

259
-

99
-

51
-

57
-

52
-

74
3

259

99

51

57

52

77
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1.3

Financial Position, Liquidity and Sources of Finance

1.3.1

Cash flow – Analysis of the results for 2016 as compared to 2015

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities amounted to NIS 767 million in 2016, compared with NIS 947 million in the
previous year. The decrease in cash flow from operating activities is mainly due to changes in working capital
items in 2015 against an increase of income this year.
Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to NIS 215 million in 2016, compared with net cash from
investing activities of NIS 12 million in the previous year.
Cash from investing activities in 2016 included mainly investment in PPE at NIS 325 million against net
proceeds from exercising short-term deposits at NIS 170 million.
The cash provided by investing activities in 2015 included mainly disposal of marketable collaterals, net, at
NIS 645 million against investment in PPE at NIS 384 million and investment in a short-term deposit at
NIS 270.
Cash flow used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to NIS 914 million in 2016, compared with NIS 454 million in
the previous year.
The net cash used in financing activities in 2016 included mainly repayment of bonds and interest payments at
NIS 761 million and on the other hand dividend payment of NIS 100 million.
The net cash used in financing activities in 2015 included mainly repayment of bonds and interest in the amount
of NIS 750 million and on the other hand issuance of bonds for a consideration of NIS 313 million (net).
1.3.2

Cash flow – Analysis of the results for 2015 as compared to 2014

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities amounted to NIS 947 million in 2015, compared with NIS 330 million in
2014. The increase in cash flow from operating activities is mainly due to the increase in profit and the changes
in working capital items.
Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash from investing activities amounted to NIS 12 million in 2015, compared with net cash used in
investing activities of NIS 246 million in 2014.
The cash from investing activities in 2015 included mainly the sale of marketable securities, net, in the amount
of NIS 645 million and on the other hand investments in property, plant and equipment in the amount of NIS
384 million and investment in a short-term deposit in the amount of NIS 270 million.
The cash used in investing activities in 2014 included mainly investments in property, plant and equipment in
the amount of NIS 418 million and on the other hand sale of marketable securities, net, in the amount of NIS
112 million and withdrawal of a short-term deposit in the amount of NIS 40 million.

14

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Shufersal Ltd.

Cash flow used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to NIS 454 million in 2015, compared with NIS 426 million in
2014.
The net cash used in financing activities in 2015 included mainly repayment of bonds and interest in the amount
of NIS 750 million and on the other hand issuance of bonds for a consideration of NIS 313 million (net).
The net cash used in financing activities in 2014 included mainly repayment of bonds and interest in the amount
of NIS 342 million and payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 70 million.

1.3.3

Balances of liquid assets and financial ratios

As at the end of 2016, the Company’s consolidated net liquid assets (cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits and marketable securities) amounted to NIS 494 million, compared with NIS 1,026 million as at the
end of 2015. The decrease in net liquid assets is mainly due to proceeds that were received from the issuance of
bonds in 2015.
As at the end of 2016, the Company’s liabilities to banks and for bonds, including interest payable (hereinafter –
“the Financial Debt”) amounted to NIS 2,470 million, compared with NIS 3,129 million as at the end of 2015.
The ratio of liabilities to banks and bonds to total assets is 36.5% as at the end of 2016, compared with 43.3% as
at the end of 2015.
As at the end of 2016 the Company’s balances of trade payables amounted to NIS 1,787 million, compared with
NIS 1,814 million as at the end of 2015 (ranging between NIS 1.6 billion and NIS 2 billion in 2016).
As at the end of 2016, the Company’s net debt (the financial debt net of cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits and marketable securities) amounted to NIS 1,976 million, compared with NIS 2,103 million as at the
end of 2015.
As at the end of 2016, the Company’s total equity was NIS 1,315 million, compared with NIS 1,170 million as
at the end of 2015.
The ratio of the Company’s equity to its total assets is 19% in 2016, compared with 16% as at the end of 2015.
1.3.4

Board of Directors’ discussion of the Company’s liquidity in view of the working capital deficit as
at December 31, 2016

As at December 31, 2016, the Group has a working capital deficit (on a consolidated basis) of NIS 440 million,
compared with a working capital deficit of NIS 348 million as at December 31, 201512, and it has a working
capital deficit (on a stand-alone basis)as of December 31, 2016 of NIS 365 million, compared with working
capital of NIS 253 million as at December 31, 2015.
The working capital deficit as at December 31, 2016 is mainly due to maturity of bonds and interest payments at
NIS 761 million. The Company ended the year with a positive cash flow from operating activities (see
paragraph 1.3.2 above).
As stated in the Company’s previous board reporting, the maturity structure of the Company’s Series B, C, D
and E bonds, and mainly the Company’s Series B and C bonds, creates a high burden of future payments
between the years 2016 and 2019 (inclusive). Therefore, on August 4, 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors
12

The comparative figures as at 31 December 2015 included a liability in respect of an option to acquire a partnership in
the amount of 133 million. As of December 31, 2016 this liability is presented under non-current liabilities.
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approved a plan for dealing with those payments (“the plan”) by which the Company would issue bonds each
year, in the years 2016 through 2019 (inclusive) or proximate to them, in an amount close to the amount of the
payment required in that year in respect of those series of bonds or at least a significant part of it, which have a
long average duration (i.e. issue long-term bonds with principal payments beginning only after 2019). In the
third quarter of 2015, the Company began executing the aforesaid plan and issued to the public a new series of
bonds (Series F) in an amount of NIS 317 million (gross) with an average duration of 7.5, with principal is paid
beginning in 2020 (and through 2028).
In July 2016, the Company continued implementing the plan, by replacing approx. 50% of outstanding par value
of Series B at the time (approx. NIS 511 million par value of Series B bonds) with bonds from an extended
Series F, and which were issued to those holders, and that under an exchange offer issued by the Company
according to a shelf prospectus. In total, Series F was extended as a result of the exchange offer by NIS 601
million par value.
In November 2016, as another step of implementing the plan, the Company exchange 72% of the remaining
outstanding par value of Series B at the time (approx. NIS 370 million par value of Series B bonds) by bonds
from an extended Series E, and which were issued to those holders, and that under an exchange offer issued by
the Company according to a shelf prospectus. In total, Series E was extended as a result of the exchange offer by
NIS 463 million par value.
The exchange contributed, among other things, to the flattening of maturities in coming years and increasing
bond durations. As of the date of this report, the expected amount of maturities expected in respect of all
outstanding bonds in 2017 is NIS 373 million (excluding future linkage differences), and this amount includes a
total of NIS 120 million that was already paid on February 3, 2017 to holders of Series C bonds, and which was
the last payment to holders of those bonds, including accrued interest.
Following the exchange of Series B bonds, as above, maturities of the Company became flatter, and the amount
of expected maturities of outstanding bonds (excluding future linkage differences) in 2018 and 2019 will be
NIS 246 million and NIS 239 million, respectively. The expected amount of maturities of the Company in
respect of outstanding bonds (excluding future linkage differences) in the years until the end of life of
outstanding bonds is within the range of NIS 276 million in 2020 and down to NIS 208 million in 2028, whereas
in the last year (2029), it will be NIS 97 million.
It is further noted that, as of the date of this report, the Company also is examines obtaining a NIS 300 million
line of credit agreements for a two-year period from financial institutions. It is not certain that the Company will
indeed engage in those agreements.
In view of the above, the need for the Company to issue additional bonds to address the maturity burden, which
was originally expected until 2019, was mitigated, since those maturities were flattened. However, it is not
possible to rule out additional issues, according to plans of the Company and its business plans. In view of the
aforesaid, and taking into account the Company’s accessibility to additional sources of credit and financing, and
in view of the Group’s balances of cash and cash equivalents and the Group’s cash flow forecast for the two
year period beginning December 31, 2016, the Board of Directors decided that notwithstanding the working
capital deficit as at December 31, 2016 the Company does not have a liquidity problem.
The assessment of the Company’s accessibility to sources of credit (including issuing bonds) and the assessment
of the Company’s accessibility to possible additional sources of financing, took note of the yield to maturity at
which the Company’s bonds are traded, the Company’s rating, the Company’s ability to realize real estate and
the fact that the Company and its subsidiaries own unencumbered real estate. It is noted that as at the date of the
report, there is only a small number of liens of an insignificant amount on the assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and the Company does not have any commitments to not create pledges on its assets other than the
Company’s commitment in the trust deeds of the Series D, E and F bonds to not create a current pledge with
respect to its assets without obtaining the consent of the holders of the bonds from those series.
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It is emphasized that the information on the Company’s sources of financing and revenue as provided in
the above paragraph, including the Company’s ability to raise debt, is forward-looking information,
within its meaning in the Securities Law – 1968, and is mainly based on the Company’s forecasts. This
assessment may not be realized or may be realized in a different manner than was assessed, including
materially different, as a result of market behavior and realization of the risk factors mentioned in
Paragraph 16 of Part A to the periodic report.

2.

Market Risk Exposure and Management

2.1

Company officer responsible for market risk management

The Company’s CFO, Ms. Talya Huber, is responsible for the management of market risks in the Company. See
Regulation 26A of Part D of the periodic report (additional information on the corporation) for details regarding
her education, skills and professional experience.

2.2

Supervision over market risk management policy and its implementation

The Company closely follows developments in interest rates, in the Consumer Price Index and in the yield to
maturity of bonds.
The Investments Committee of the Board is in charge of financial exposures; management of surplus cash;
development of hedge strategies, monitoring their performance and providing immediate response to
exceptional developments in the various markets. Other relevant persons also participate in the meetings of the
Committee. The Committee is assisted by capital market consultants as necessary. The Committee meets as
needed.
For further details see Note 23 to the financial statements regarding management of financial risks.

2.3

Description of market risks

Market risks comprise the changes in the value of financial instruments caused by fluctuations in interest rates,
the Consumer Price Index, foreign currency exchange rates and prices of securities.
In 2016 most of the Company’s exposure was to changes in the CPI. The Company also has an insignificant
exposure to changes in the exchange rates of the dollar and euro.
For further details see Section 2.6 hereunder regarding sensitivity tests for sensitive instruments, according to
changes in market factors as at December 31, 2016.
Bonds and loan from banks
Presented hereunder is a breakdown of repayments of bonds by principal and interest, and of bank loans based
on repayment years (in NIS millions):
Year
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Principal*
265
151
151
195
195
195
195
195

Interest*
108
95
88
81
72
64
55
47
17

Bank loans
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total
375
246
239
276
267
259
250
242
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2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
Total
*

195
195
195
195
93
2,415

38
30
21
13
4
716

0
0
0
0
0
2

233
225
216
208
97
3,133

Repayment of bonds (principal + interest) is not capitalized according to a “Spitzer” payment table –
part is linked to the Consumer Price Index and part is unlinked.

Investments in securities
The securities portfolio of the Company includes short-term loans (MAKAM), deposits, government bonds and
corporate bonds rated at least "A" and at least "A2" by Maalot and Midroog Ltd., respectively
Investments in investment property
As at December 31, 2016, the Group has investment property in the amount of NIS 543 million. A yield rate of
between 7.5% and 9% before tax.
This rate takes into account the risk based on the different periods of the lease agreements and the quality of the
tenants. The Group leases out investment property to a large number of lessees, regarding most of which there
were no material changes in the lease agreements.
In the reporting period the change in the fair value of investment property amounted to an increase of NIS 26
million, which is mainly due to the realization of building rights, progress in projects under construction, real
estate improvements, the signing of new agreements, an improvement in revenues and a cutback in the operating
costs of the properties. The change in fair value was recognized in the statement of income under increase in fair
value and realization value of investment property, net.
In addition, the Group has investment property that the Company uses for purposes of its retail segment activity,
which its fair value is NIS 1,680 million as at December 31, 2016, and is classified in the Company’s financial
statements as property, plant and equipment (and therefore is not presented at its fair value).
The Group will continue to monitor developments on the financial markets and their effects on the Israeli
economy, and it is possible that the developments will lead to a change in the value of the Company’s securities
portfolio and the value of its investment property.
2.3.1

Consumer Price Index risks

The Company is exposed to changes in the Consumer Price Index (“the CPI”) mainly in respect of CPI-linked
bonds issued by the Company that amount to NIS 1.5 billion as at December 31, 2016 (compared to NIS 2.5
billion as of December 31, 2015), and in respect of CPI-linked payments in the annual amount of NIS 385
million.
The Company engaged in 3 swap transactions for exchanging CPI-linked NIS cash flows with fixed NIS cash
flows in respect to Series F bonds that were issued at that period. The mount of hedge instruments is NIS 600
million. The transactions are accounted for as accounting hedges.
In 2016, the Company incurred financing expenses in relation to those transactions at NIS 2 million.
2.3.2

Foreign currency risks

The Company’s policy is to hedge the currency exchange rates in respect of import of goods from outside of
Israel.
18

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Shufersal Ltd.

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has forward contracts on the rate of the dollar in the amount of
US$12.5 million for settlement until June 2017 and forward contracts on the exchange rate of the euro of €3.9
million for settlement until August 2017.
In 2016, the Company incurred financing expenses in the amount of NIS 2 million in respect of those contracts,
compared to NIS 5 million in the previous year. The Company’s exposure to currency risks is insignificant.
2.3.3

Interest risks

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates on its short-term investments and deposits.
2.3.4

Israeli capital market risks

The Company is exposed to changes in prices of securities in Israel since part of the Company’s monetary
balances is invested in government bonds and in corporate bonds that are linked to the Israeli CPI, and in
corporate bonds bearing a fixed shekel interest rate that are rated at least "A" and at least "A2" by Maalot and
Midroog Ltd., respectively. As of the date of the statement of financial position, this exposure is immaterial.

2.4

Company policy regarding market risk management

The Company invests its surplus liquidity with a view of obtaining a fair return while maintaining an
appropriate return/risk balance.
In 2016, the Company made use of derivative financial instruments with a view of matching, to the extent
possible, the linkage bases of its financial assets and liabilities (hedge transactions). The Company examines on
a regular basis the need to acquire hedges in order to deal with its economic exposures. The Company does not
invest in entities that primarily engage in derivatives and short selling.

2.5

Linkage bases report

See Note 24.C to the financial statements for details on the Company’s linkage bases report as at December 31,
2016.
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2.6

Sensitivity tests

Sensitivity tests for sensitive instruments, according to changes in market factors as at December 31, 2016
Interest rate sensitivity
Gain (loss) from changes
10%
5%
2%
Fair value
increase
increase
increase
as at
in
in
in
December
interest
interest
interest
31, 2016
NIS millions

Market
interest
rate at
reporting
date

Sensitive instruments

Loans received
Total bonds
2005 issuance Series B
2005 issuance Series B
2006 issuance Series B
2007 issuance Series B
2010 issuance Series B
2009 issuance Series C
2010 issuance Series C
2013 issuance Series D
2013 issuance Series E
2016 issuance Series E
2015 issuance of F
2016 issuance of F
Loans granted
Deposits

0.92%
0.92%
0.92%
0.92%
0.92%
1.30%
1.30%
2.56%
3.56%
3.56%
2.90%
2.90%

Base
index

Sensitive instruments

Bank loans received
Bonds
Swap - interest rate
exchange

88.8
74.0

0.0
42.8
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.0
5.9
7.8
9.9
6.6
12.4
(0.0)
(0.0)

0.0
21.5
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
3.0
3.9
5.0
3.3
6.3
(0.0)
(0.0)

0.0
262.4
1.3
0.7
0.5
1.1
0.8
0.1
0.1
43.0
41.0
52.1
42.0
79.7
(0.2)
(0.8)

(2)
(2,630)
(56)
(31)
(21)
(49)
(34)
(66)
(54)
(396)
(400)
(509)
(350)
(664)
2
412

CPI sensitivity
Gain (loss) from changes
Fair value
10%
5%
as at
increase
increase
December
in CPI
in CPI
31, 2016
NIS millions

(0.2)
(160.1)
74.4

(0.1)
(80.0)
37.2

(2)
(1,601)
*-

Gain (loss) from changes
2%
5%
10%
decrease decrease decrease
in
in
in
interest
interest
interest

(0.0)
(312.6)
(1.4)
(0.8)
(0.5)
(1.2)
(0.8)
(0.1)
(0.1)
(51.6)
(48.8)
(62.1)
(50.1)
(95.1)
0.3
0.8

(0.0)
(21.7)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(3.0)
(4.0)
(5.1)
(3.3)
(6.3)
0.0
0.0

(0.0)
(44.2)
(0.1)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.1)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(0.0)
(6.1)
(8.1)
(10.3)
(6.7)
(12.8)
0.0
0.0

Gain (loss) from changes
5%
10%
decrease
decrease
in CPI
in CPI

0.1
80.0
(36.5)

0.2
160.1
(72.4)

* Lower than NIS 1 million.

Sensitive instruments

Marketable securities

Gain from changes
10% increase
5% increase
in market price
in market price

1.0

Market price sensitivity
Fair value as at
Loss from changes
December 31,
5% decrease
10% decrease
2016
in market price
in market price
NIS millions

0.5
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3.

Corporate Governance

3.1

Activities of the Board of Directors and its committees
Enforcement plan and procedures in the area of securities
In February 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted, after approval thereof by the Audit
Committee, an internal enforcement plan in the area of securities laws (that is, the provisions of the
Securities Law and the Regulations promulgated thereunder, along with related laws), the purpose of
which is to verify and enforce compliance by the Company, its officers and employees with the
requirements of law in the area of securities, including on the basis of procedures that were adopted by
the Company, and/or that it will adopt, from time to time, in this area. The plan provides arrangements,
among other things, related to the manner of assimilating procedures in the Company, existence of
supervision and reporting mechanisms, and ways of handling and reaching conclusions in connection
with breakdowns (if any are found). The plan was formulated on the basis of the Company’s unique
characteristics and working environment, based on a compliance survey in the area of securities and
criteria for an efficient enforcement plan that were published by the Securities Authority.
The Company’s Board of Directors appointed Mr. Eran Meiri, the Company’s General Counsel, as the
person responsible for enforcement in the Company. The job of the person responsible for enforcement
is to ascertain (by himself or through other position holders in the Company) that the enforcement plan
is efficiently and effectively executed, including by means of monitoring, and holding training sessions
and assimilations, as well as by updating Company management regarding operation of the plan and
special events. As part of the enforcement plan, procedures were adopted that among other things relate
to the manner of issuing immediate reports, to the identification, approval and reporting of transactions
that raise concerns regarding a personal interest of officers or controlling shareholders, benchmarks for
classifying transactions and activities as non-extraordinary transactions, a procedure for classifying
transactions as insignificant transactions, a competitive process procedure, a procedure regarding
prohibition of use and transfer of inside information, a policy for preventing fraud and manipulation,
and others. The procedures provide rules of action and conduct along with work processes the goal of
which is to provide a response to and controls over central processes with respect to matters arranged in
the framework thereof.
The plan and procedures were assimilated in 2013.
In 2016, along with the current execution of the enforcement plan, the Company held two updating and
internal examination processes. The first was a test that the target population of the plan is familiar with
the plan and the people who are responsible for its execution. The second process comprised an
examination and update of the plan’s instructions, taking into consideration amendments to the law and
the Securities Authority’s opinions and developments in the Company’s activity.
According to the enforcement plan and the criteria of the Israel Securities Authority, a revision of the
enforcement plan was made and approved in January 2017, including assessment of the compliance
survey, including a revision of transitional provisions of the plan given legislative amendments, lessons
learned from implementing the plan over the years and results of a test that was performed.
For details on the Company’s procedures regarding extraordinary transactions, insignificant transactions
and competitive process see Regulation 22 of Part D (Additional Details on the Corporation) of the
periodic report.
Meetings of the Board of Directors
In 2016, the Board of Directors held 13 meetings. The committees of the Board of Directors held
additional meetings.
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3.2

Directors having accounting and financial expertise

After evaluating the education, experience, qualifications and knowledge of the members of the Board of
Directors relating to business/accounting matters and to financial statements, the members of the Board
considered by the Board as having accounting and financial expertise are: Mauricio Wior , Michael Bar Haim,
Isaac Idan, Tsvi Ben Porat, Gideon Schurr, Aharon Adler, Eldad Mizrahi and Eldad Avraham (for details with
respect to the experience and education of the said directors, see Regulation 26 in Part D (Additional Details on
the Corporation) of the Company’s periodic report).
For details regarding the minimum number of directors with accounting and financial expertise that is
appropriate for the Company, see the corporate governance questionnaire that is attached in Part E of the
periodic report.

3.3

Process of approval of the financial statements

For details regarding the process of approval of the Company’s financial statements, see the corporate
governance questionnaire that is attached in Part E of the periodic report.

3.4

Disclosure regarding the internal auditor of the Company

Particulars of the internal auditor
1.

The Company’s internal auditor - Levi Steinbaum.

2.

First date of service: October 1, 1997.

3.

The internal auditor complies with the conditions provided in Section 3(a) of the Internal Audit Law –
1992 (hereinafter – “the Internal Audit Law”).

4.

The internal auditor complies with the provisions of Section 146(b) of the Companies Law and the
provisions of Section 8 of the Internal Audit Law.

5.

The internal auditor is not an interested party of the Company and is not related to an interested party or
an officer of the Company, and does not serve as the Company’s external auditor or on its behalf. The
internal auditor does not fill any other position in the Company besides internal auditor. In addition the
internal auditor does not hold any securities of the Company.

6.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, other than the employment of the internal auditor and his staff
as described hereunder, the internal auditor and his staff do not have material business connections or
any other material connections with the Company or a related party of the Company.

7.

The internal auditor is an employee of the Company and serves as a senior officer in accordance with
the law.

Appointment of the internal auditor
The internal auditor was appointed to his position at the Board of Directors’ meeting on August 10, 1997
according to the provisions of the Internal Audit Law. The internal auditor is a CPA, holds a B.A. in economics,
statistics and accounting and is an International Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) since 1994. It was determined
that the internal auditor would act according to the provisions of the Law to perform an internal audit in
Shufersal, taking note of, inter alia, its size, its volume of activity and the complexity of its activity.
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Identity of the organizational function in charge of the internal auditor
The internal auditor reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.
The work plan and the considerations it is based on
The annual work plan is submitted by the Internal Auditor and is approved by the Company’s Audit Committee.
The work plan for 2017 has been derived from the multi-year work plan for 2017-2020 (inclusive). In 2013 a
risks’ survey was performed in the Company for management of the Company. In addition, in 2016, a
preliminary stage of the risk management, and the issues in the survey were reflected in the multi-year work
plan. Issues that arose in the risk surveys over the years serve as basis for preparing the multi-year work plan.
The annual work plan for 2017 was updated according to the matters that arose in the risk assessment survey
that the Company’s internal auditor performs every year with senior executives of the Company including the
Chairman of the Board, CEO, VPs and additional managers and with the participation of the Company’s
independent auditors. In the Audit Committee’s meeting on December 27, 2016, the work plan and the
necessary audit resources were presented by the Internal Auditor to the Audit Committee of the Board. The
Audit Committee approved the work plan subject to changes it considered fit to include, in accordance with
Section 7 of the Internal Audit Law.
The Internal Auditor has discretion to deviate from the determined work plan subject to approval of the Audit
Committee. Compliance with the work plan is presented once a year to the Audit Committee.
The work plan includes: coverage of all important issues in all units of the Company, putting special emphasis
on subjects that had been examined in the past and found to be highly exposed to risk, providing a response to
items brought up in risks’ surveys that were performed in the Company and performance of an audit in fixed
areas at reasonable intervals (once a year for important and material issues and once every three to four years for
other matters).
During the reporting period, the Internal Auditor examined the manner of approval of certain material
transactions (as defined in Section 5(f) to the fourth addendum to the reporting regulations) and examined
non-extraordinary transactions with interested parties. The Internal Auditor was invited and was present at all
the meetings of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, including meetings at which material
transactions were discussed.
Audit of material investee companies of the Company
The internal audit plan includes audits of wholly owned investees of the Company and of Shufersal Finance
partnership.
Manner and scope of employment of the Internal Auditor and his staff and their remuneration
In 2016, the Company employed a staff of four full time employees (including the Internal Auditor) engaged in
internal audit (hereinafter – "the internal audit department") and was also assisted by external parties for
purposes of implementation of the work plan. In 2016, the Internal Audit department engaged external
consultants to work on the issues of information security, insurance, information technology systems, labor
laws, anti-fraud and revenue assurance.
Number of hours invested in the
internal audit of the Company in
2016
7,400

Number of hours invested in the
internal audit of investee
companies in 2016
500

23

Number of hours invested by
external consultants in 2016
900

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Shufersal Ltd.

The work plan derives from a multi-year plan, and in the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors the
number of hours provides a response to this plan and includes reference to the risks’ surveys performed in the
Company.
Professional standards according to which the Internal Auditor performs the audit
According to information provided to management of the Company by the Internal Auditor, the internal audit is
performed according to generally accepted professional internal auditing standards, professional guidelines and
instructions approved and published by the Institute of Internal Auditors in Israel and according to the Internal
Audit Law. The Board of Directors relied upon the reports of the Internal Auditor with respect to his compliance
with the requirements of the said professional standards, according to which he performs the audit. In 2015 an
internal audit quality assessment was performed by an external company which concluded that the internal audit
in Shufersal generally complies with the guidelines of the international Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA).
Access to information
Documents and information in the possession of the Company have been provided to the Internal Auditor for
performance of his duty, as stated in Section 9 of the Internal Audit Law. Furthermore, free, constant and direct
access to the information systems of the Company and of its principal investees, including the financial data, is
provided to the Internal Auditor for performance of his work. The information systems of Shufersal serve also
its investee companies, and the Internal Auditor is authorized to inspect all data managed by the information
systems including that of the principal investees.
Report of the Internal Auditor
Reports on the findings of the Internal Auditor are submitted regularly in writing to the Chairman of the Board,
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, to the members of the Audit Committee, to the CEO and to the
Company’s independent auditors. In 2016, the Audit Committee met to discuss the internal audit reports
submitted for this year (about 26 reports) on the following dates: February 15, June 6, September 25, October
25 and December 27.
Board of Directors' assessment of the internal auditor's activities
According to the Board of Director's assessment, the scope, nature and continuity of the internal auditor’s
activities and work plan are reasonable in the circumstances and should achieve the Company’s internal audit
goals.
Remuneration of the internal auditor
The remuneration costs of the Internal Auditor for 2016 was NIS 1,426 thousand.
The total remuneration paid in 2016 to the staff of the internal audit department (excluding the Internal Auditor
himself) amounted to NIS 739 thousand.
The remuneration to the Internal Auditor and to the staff of the internal audit department is not dependent on the
results of the audit work. Accordingly, the Board of Directors believes that this matter has no effect upon the
professional judgment of the Internal Auditor and on the results of the audit.
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3.5

Disclosure regarding the fees of the independent auditors

The independent auditors of the Company and of companies material to the Company and to subsidiaries in
2015 is KPMG Somekh Chaikin CPAs. In 2016, in addition to Somekh Chaikin CPAs, the general meeting of
shareholders appointed, on May 10, 2016, Kesselman & Kesselman CPAs as joint auditors of the Company and
material corporations to the Company and the subsidiaries.
Presented hereunder is the overall fee of the Company and the subsidiaries’ auditors in 2016 and 2015:
2016
NIS thousands

Hours

2015
NIS thousands

Hours

Auditing and tax services to the Company*
Auditing and tax services to subsidiaries*
Other services to the Company

1,205
195
409

8,893
1,509
1,397

1,067
182
316

6,651
1,158
983

Total

1,809

11,799

1,565

8,792

* The tax services received by the Company from the independent auditors are immaterial compared with the
audit services.
In negotiations held between the auditors and the highest ranking financial officer a fixed amount was set for the
fee payable to the auditors for auditing services in 2016 (a fixed amount and not an hourly rate as was the
practice in the past). The fee was determined with reference to the number of audit hours expected for the
current year, and was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors after receiving the recommendations of
the Audit Committee. Regarding non-audit work, the fee was determined separately according to the amount of
work required.

3.6

Contribution to the community

A.

Donation of funds or products in 2016

Shufersal views itself as committed to active and ongoing involvement in contribution to the community.
Within the framework of contributing to the community, Shufersal gives preference to donations of aid to
underprivileged populations in Israel. Accordingly, at every holiday Shufersal distributes gift cards for
purchasing food to thousands of families and children throughout Israel.
The total amount of monetary contributions and gift cards was NIS 4.1.
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B.

Contribution activities in 2015

As part of Shufersal’s contribution to the community, the Company, among other things, conducts fundraising
campaigns involving customers at the cash counters of stores all over the country. Each fundraising campaign
relates to a specific association and the funds raised are transferred to that association for its current operations
in health, education, welfare and other fields.
As part of the overall contribution activities, cash or cash equivalent (foodstuffs) in the amount of about NIS 4.4
million was donated to the various societies and organizations.

4.

Directives regarding disclosures pertaining to the financial reporting of the
Company

4.1

Disclosure regarding events subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position
•
•

4.2

For details regarding provisions for claims and legal proceedings subsequent to the date of the
Company’s statement of financial position, see Note 15(2) to the financial statements.
For details regarding events subsequent to the date of the Company’s statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2016, see Note 34 to the financial statements.

Goodwill
As to testing goodwill for impairment, which has a carrying amount of NIS 820 million, see note 12 to
the financial statements.
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5.

Specific disclosure for holders of Company bonds

Data as at December 31, 2016
Series

Series B

Date of
issuance

Par value
on date of
issuance
(NIS
millions)

Proceeds
on date of
issuance
net of
issuance
expenses
(NIS
millions)

Carrying
amount (NIS
millions)*

Balance of
par value
(NIS
millions)

Balance of
par value,
including
linkage (NIS
millions)

Accumulated
interest
(NIS millions)

Stock
market/fair
value (NIS
millions)

Type of
interest

Effective
interest
rate on
date of
issuance

Stated
interest

Payment date of
principal

First
date

Last
date

Interest payment
dates

Type of
linkage

April
2005

500

498

53

42

51

2

56

Fixed

5.24%

5.2%

March
31,
2015

March
31,
2019

Annual interest
on Mar. 31 of
each year
between 2006
and 2019

CPI

Nov.
2005

280

299

30

23

29

1

31

Fixed

5.02%

5.2%

March
31,
2015

March
31,
2019

Annual interest
on Mar. 31 of
each year
between 2006
and 2019

CPI

March
2006

184

200

19

15

19

1

21

Fixed

5.02%

5.2%

March
31,
2015

March
31,
2019

Annual interest
on Mar. 31 of
each year
between 2006
and 2019

CPI

Feb. 2007

436

499

47

36

45

2

49

Fixed

4.3%

5.2%

March
31,
2015

March
31,
2019

Annual interest
on Mar. 31 of
each year
between 2007
and 2019

CPI

Dec. 2010

306

421

33

26

31

1

34

Fixed

2.81%

5.2%

March
31,
2015

March
31,
2019

Annual interest
on Mar. 31 of
each year
between 2011
and 2019

CPI
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Series

Series C

Date of
issuance

Par value
on date of
issuance
(NIS
millions)

Proceeds on
date of
issuance net
of issuance
expenses
(NIS
millions)

Carrying
amount (NIS
millions)*

Balance of
par value
(NIS
millions)

Balance of
par value,
including
linkage (NIS
millions)

Accumulated
interest
(NIS millions)

Stock
market/fair
value (NIS
millions)

Type of
interest

Effective
interest
rate on
date of
issuance

Stated
interest

Payment date of
principal

First
date

Last
date

Interest
payment dates

Type of
linkage

Aug. 2009

500

496

65

63

63

3

66

Fixed

5.68%

5.45%

Feb. 3,
2010

Feb. 3,
2017

Annual
interest on
Feb. 3 of each
year between
2010 and
2017

Unlinked

Dec. 2010

358

382

54

51

51

3

54

Fixed

4.82%

5.45%

Feb. 3,
2011

Feb. 3,
2017

Annual
interest on
Feb. 3 of each
year between
2011 and
2017

Unlinked

Series D

Oct. 2013

472

468

384

384

384

3

396

Fixed

3.12%

2.99%

Oct. 8,
2014

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2014 and
2029

CPI

Series E

Oct. 2013

448

444

365

364

364

4

400

Fixed

5.23%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2014

Oct. 8,
2029

Unlinked

Nov.2016

463

**473

475

463

463

5

509

Fixed

4.81%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2017

Oct. 8,
2029

Sep. 2015

317

313

317

317

317

3

353

Fixed

4.44%

4.3%

Oct. 8,
2020

Oct. 8,
2028

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2014 and
2029
Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2017 and
2029
Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2016 and
2028

Series F

28

Unlinked

CPI
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Jul.2016

Total

*
**

601

**643

4,865

5,136

626

2,468

601

2,385

601

6

2,418

664

34

Fixed

3.82%

4.3%

Oct. 8,
2020

Oct. 8,
2028

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2016 and
2028

CPI

2,630

Carrying amount – The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest rate on the date of issuance and linked to the
CPI at the reporting date (Series C and Series E bonds are not linked to the CPI).
No cash consideration was received in respect of those issues, which were performed as part of an exchange offer for Series B bonds of the Company as
discussed in notes 1(b)(6) and 1(b)(7) to the financial statements. The considerations above refer to the par value of Series B bonds exchanged in the purchase
offer (including accrued interest).
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Notes:
1.

The principal payments of the bonds are annual.

2.

The trustee of the Series B bonds is Hermetic Trust (1975) Ltd., from 113 Hayarkon St., Tel Aviv (tel.
03-5274867, fax. 03-5271736). The contact person at the trustee for the Series B bonds is Mr. Dan
Avnon, Adv., e-mail: hermetic@hermetic.co.il
The trustee of the Series C bonds is Strauss Lazar Trust Company (1992) Ltd., from 17 Yitzhak Sadeh
St., Tel Aviv (tel. 03-6237777, fax. 03-6389222). The contact person at the trustee for the Series C
bonds is Mr. Ori Lazer, CPA and Adv., e-mail: ori@slcpa.co.il
The trustee of the Series D bonds and Series E bonds is Reznik Paz Nevo Trustees Ltd., from 14 Yad
Haroutzim St. Tel-Aviv (tel. 03-6389200, fax. 03-6389222). The contact person at the trustee for the
Series D bonds and Series E bonds is Mr. Yossi Reznik, CPA, e-mail: Trust@rpn.co.il
The trustee of the Series F bonds is Strauss Lazar Trust Company (1992) Ltd., from 17 Yitzhak Sadeh
St., Tel Aviv (tel. 03-6237777, fax. 03-5613824). The contact person at the trustee for the Series F
bonds is Mr. Ori Lazer, CPA and Adv., e-mail: ori@slcpa.co.il

3.

In 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Company is in compliance with all the conditions and
liabilities under the trust deeds of the outstanding bonds and there is no cause for demanding immediate
repayment of the Company’s outstanding bonds.

4.

All the Company’s outstanding Series D, E and F bonds, as detailed in the table above, are material. All
the series of bonds are listed for trade on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange.

5.

Among the causes for immediate repayment of the Series B bonds is also the event of another series of
the Company’s bonds being called for immediate repayment, all according to the terms provided in the
trust deed. The Series C bonds do not include a similar cause. Among the causes for immediate
repayment of the Series D and E bonds is also the event of another debt of the Company to a bank
and/or other financial institution (other than a debt that is non-recourse to the Company) being called for
immediate repayment, providing that the total amount called for immediate repayment is higher than
NIS 300 million, or another outstanding series of the Company’s bonds being called for immediate
repayment (not by the Company) providing that the total amount called for immediate repayment is
higher than NIS 40 million, all according to that provided in the trust deeds. The Series F bonds include
a cause similar to that of Series D and E, but unlike Series D and E there is no minimum amount that
has to be called for immediate repayment in the event of another series of bonds being called for
immediate repayment (unlike the amount of NIS 40 million in Series D and E).

6.

The Company’s Series B and Series C bonds do not include financial covenants. The Series D, E and F
bonds include financial covenants as stated hereunder.

7.

On February 3, 2016, subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position, the Company
redeemed Series C bonds of the Company of a par value of NIS 113,663,143. After that payment,
Series C bonds fully matured.

8.

In accordance with the terms of the trust deeds of the Company’s Series D, E and F bonds, the
Company is permitted to early redeem (fully or partially) the Series D, E and F bonds. For additional
details, see Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series D bonds and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of
the Series E bonds (as detailed in the trust deeds annex of the Company’s shelf prospectus dated
May 30, 2012 and as amended on September 30, 2013) and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series
F bonds as detailed in the trust deeds annex of the Company’s shelf registration statement dated
September 3, 2015 that was issued in accordance with the Company’s shelf prospectus dated June 25,
2015.
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9.

See Note 17 to the financial statements for further details regarding the terms of the Company’s Series
D, E and F bonds, including a commitment to comply with financial covenants, a commitment to not
create a current pledge, and restrictions relating to dividend distribution.
Presented hereunder are the results of calculating the financial covenants required from the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Series D, E and F bonds as aforesaid, as at December 31, 2015 and
proximate to the date of signing the financial statements:
Financial covenant

Ratio of net debt to total balance
sheet shall not exceed 60%
The Company’s total equity
(including
non-controlling
interests) shall not fall below
NIS 550 million
*

Calculation results
As at December 31, 2016
Proximate to the date of
signing the financial
statements*
29%
32%
NIS 1,315 million

NIS 1,155 million

It is clarified that the Company’s commitment to comply with financial covenants relates to the
results of the calculation at the end of each calendar quarter, based on the data included in the
reviewed or audited financial statements of the Company at that date, and that the data included
in the column “proximate to the date of signing the financial statements” is only an
approximation, and have not been reviewed or audited. It is also noted that the data in the
column “proximate to the date of signing the financial statements”, are presented assuming that
the dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million that was declared by the Company along with
the approval of the financial statements has actually been distributed.

Presented hereunder are the results of calculating the dividend distribution restrictions that apply to the
Company in accordance with the terms of the Series D, E and F bonds as at December 31, 2016 (and at
that date taking into account a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million that was declared by the
Company along with the approval of the financial statements):

Restriction

The Company’s total equity
(including
non-controlling
interests) shall not fall below
NIS 750 million
Ratio of the Company’s net
debt to EBITDA shall not
exceed 7
(*)

Calculation results as at
December 31, 2016

NIS 1,315 million

Calculation results as at
December 31, 2016 taking
into account a dividend that
was declared along with the
approval of the financial
statements
1,155

2.8 (*)

3.02

Revenue in the amount of NIS 12 million that derives from a change in an onerous contract was
deducted from the EBITDA in the calculation of the ratio of the Company’s net debt to
EBITDA.
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10.

Details regarding the credit rating of the Company
On September 20, 2016, Ma’alot announced that it upgraded the credit rating of Shufersal from ‘ilA’ to
‘ilA+’ and upgraded outlook to stable, following improved financial ratios. The said rating report is
included in the Company’s immediate report from September 20, 2016 (reference no. 2016-01-126115).
On November 15, 2016, Ma’alot announced that it is awarding a rating of ‘ilA+ Stable’ to the
Company’s issuance of Series E bonds of up to a par value of NIS 625 million as part of an exchange
offer (see immediate report dated November 20, 2016, reference no. 2016-01-080085).
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Information on the rating of outstanding bonds
Series

Name of rating company

Current rating and
current outlook

Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and reporting date

Rating on date of
issuance

Date

November 8, 2005 (expansion of series)
February 7, 2007 (expansion of series)
May 11, 2009 (affirmation of rating)
May 24, 2010 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company
rating outlook)
December 21, 2010 and December 26, 2010 (lowering of rating and
expansion of series, respectively)
October 4, 2011 (affirmation of rating)
Series B

Ma’alot

ilA+ Stable

Rating

ilAA Stable
ilAA Stable
ilAA Stable
ilAA Negative
ilAA- Stable
ilAA- Stable

March 5, 2012 (affirmation of rating and lowering of outlook)

ilAA- Negative

September 20, 2012 (lowering of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA+ Negative

December 2, 2012 (affirmation of rating and outlook)

ilA+ Negative

September 16, 2013 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Negative

October 3, 2013 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company
rating outlook)

ilA Positive

September 20, 2016 (increase of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA+ Stable

AA Stable
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Series

Name of rating
company

Current rating
and current
outlook

Rating on
date of
issuance

Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and reporting date
Date

July 27, 2009 (initial rating)

Series D

Series E

Ma’alot

Ma’alot

Ma’alot

ilA+ Stable

ilA+ Stable

ilA+ Stable

ilAA Stable

May 24, 2010 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company rating
outlook)

ilAA Negative

December 21, 2010 and December 26, 2010 (lowering of rating and
expansion of series, respectively)

ilAA- Stable

October 4, 2011 (affirmation of rating)
Series C

Rating

ilAA- Stable

March 5, 2012 (affirmation of rating and lowering of outlook)

ilAA- Negative

September 20, 2012 (lowering of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA+ Negative

December 2, 2012 (affirmation of rating and outlook)

ilA+ Negative

September 16, 2013 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Negative

October 3, 2013 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and ratification of outlook)
May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company rating
outlook)
September 20, 2016 (increase of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA Stable
ilA Positive

October 3, 2013 (initial rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and ratification of outlook)
May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company rating
outlook)
September 20, 2016 (increase of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA Stable
ilA Positive

October 3, 2013 (initial rating)

ilA+ Negative

AA Stable

ilA+
Negative

ilA+
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Negative

Series F

Ma’alot

ilA Stable

ilA Stable

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and ratification of outlook)
May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company rating
outlook)
September 20, 2016 (increase of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA Stable
ilA+ Positive

November 15, 2016 (initial rating for expansion of the series)

ilA+ Stable

September 2, 2015 (initial rating)
May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and lowering of Company rating
outlook)
July 11, 2016 (initial rating for expansion of the series)

ilA Stable
ilA Positive

September 20, 2016 (increase of rating and ratification of outlook)

ilA+ Stable
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Annual report of outstanding liabilities by maturity dates
For data regarding the outstanding liabilities of the Company, see the immediate report on outstanding liabilities
by maturity dates that was issued by the Company on the date of issuing the financial statements, which the
information included in it is presented in this report by way of reference.

The Company’s Board of Directors and Management wish to express their appreciation and thanks to the
managers and employees of the Company for their professional work and their cooperation and contribution to
the Company throughout the year.

Israel Berman
Co-Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
CEO

February 21, 2017
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Current tax assets
Inventory

Note

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

4
6
7.A
7.B
28
8

384
100
10
1,083
87
8
677

746
270
10
1,145
*69
32
*656

2,349

2,928

71
18
543
2,842
895
46
4,415

69
15
468
2,801
859
90
4,302

6,764

7,230

Total current assets

Investment in associate
Other investments
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and deferred expenses
Deferred taxes
Total non-current assets

5.A
9
11
10
12
28

Total assets
*

See Note 2.G regarding reclassification.

Israel Berman
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
Chief Executive Officer

Talya Huber
CFO

Date of approval: February 21, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

16
17
13.A
13.B
14
15

2
295
1,787
656
49
2,789

3
674
1,814
*586
*133
66
3,276

Borrowings from banks and others
Bonds
Employee benefits
Provisions
Liability for option to acquire partnership
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes
Total non-current liabilities

16
17
18
15
14
19
28

2,173
140
35
159
61
92
2,660

10
2,450
131
51
54
88
2,784

Contingent liabilities and commitments

30

Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Treasury shares
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

20
240
560
14
(85)
586

240
560
7
(85)
439

1,315
-

1,161
9

Total equity

1,315

1,170

Total liabilities and equity

6,764

7,230

Note

Liabilities
Current maturities of long term loans
Current maturities in respect of bonds
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for option to acquire partnership
Provisions
Total current liabilities

*

See Note 2.G regarding reclassification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31

Note

Sales and rentals
Cost of sales and services
Gross profit

2016
NIS millions

2015
NIS millions

2014
NIS millions

11,842
8,805
3,037

11,505
8,716
2,789

11,602
8,954
2,648

2,466
152

2,385
130

2,570
125

2,618

2,515

2,695

419

274

(47)

1

3

(1)

26

9

12

27

12

11

446

286

(36)

27
27

(154)
36
(118)

(139)
52
(87)

(188)
85
(103)

5

2

-

-

330

199

(139)

(68)

(46)

32

Profit (loss) for the year

262

153

(107)

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit (loss) for the year

262
262

150
3
153

(110)
3
(107)

1.23

0.71

(0.52)

Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total selling, marketing, general and
administrative expenses

25
26

Operating profit (loss) before other income
Other income (expenses), net
Increase in fair value and gain on sale of
investment property, net

11

Total other income, net
Operating profit (loss) after other income
Financing expenses
Financing income
Financing expenses, net
Share in the income of investee accounted using
equity method
Profit (loss) before taxes on income
Taxes on income

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
(NIS)

28

21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2016
NIS millions

2015
NIS millions

2014
NIS millions

262

153

(107)

-

-

-

2

-

-

2

-

-

18
10

(11)
6

9
-

(23)
6

28

-

(2)

5

(5)

7

(12)

(3)

7

(12)

259

160

(119)

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

259
-

157
3

(122)
3

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

259

160

(119)

Note

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) items
that will not be transferred to profit or loss
Effective part of the change in fair value of
instruments used for hedging cash flows
Total other comprehensive income for the year
that was initially recognized in comprehensive
income and subsequently transferred or will be
transferred to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (loss) items
that will not be transferred to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Revaluation reserve for fixed assets
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
will not be transferred to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year
that will not be transferred to profit or loss, net
of income tax
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year,
net of tax
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Attributable to:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended December 31
Attributable to owners of the Company

Share
capital
NIS millions

Share
premium
NIS millions

Revaluation
reserve for
fixed assets
NIS millions

Treasury
shares**
NIS millions

Retained
earnings
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

Non-controlling
interests
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

Balance as at December 31, 2016

240
240

560
560

7
7
14

(85)
(85)

439
8
(100)
(13)
262
(10)
586

1,161
8
(100)
(13)
262
(3)
1,315

9
(9)
-

1,170
8
(100)
(22)
262
(3)
1,315

Balance as at January 1, 2015
Share based payment
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Balance as at December 31, 2015

240
240

560
560

7
7

(85)
(85)

281
1
150
7
439

1,003
1
150
7
1,161

6
3
9

1,009
1
153
7
1,170

Balance as at January 1, 2014
Exercise of employee share options (1)
Dividend paid
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax
Balance as at December 31, 2014

240
*240

560
*560

2
5
7

(85)
(85)

478
(70)
(110)
(17)
281

1,195
*(70)
(110)
(12)
1,003

3
3
6

1,198
*(70)
(107)
(12)
1,009

Balance as at January 1, 2016
Share based payment
Dividends to shareholders
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

(1)

See Note 22 regarding exercises of options by senior officers.

*

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31

2016
NIS millions

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets and deferred expenses
Taxes on income
Income taxes paid
Income taxes received
Financing expenses, net
Share in income of investees accounted for using the equity
method
Change in fair value and gain on sale of investment
property, net
Change in employee benefits
Gain (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment
Change in provision for onerous contracts
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables
Change in inventory
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, provisions and other
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in deferred expenses and intangible assets
Investment in investment property and investment property
under construction
Proceeds from sale of investment property
Taxes paid on sale of investment property and property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of marketable securities
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Cash payments from futures transactions, net
Placing deposit with bank as collateral for derivative
financial instrument
Long-term loan repayment
Interest received
Proceeds from withdrawal of (investment in)
short-term deposits, net
Acquisition of operation
Dividend income from other investments
Net cash from (used in) investing activities
*

2015
NIS millions

2014
NIS millions

262

153

(107)

257
15
28
68
(23)
29
118

236
22
26
46
(23)
6
87

240
54
24
(32)
(74)
29
103

(2)

-

-

(26)
(6)
8
(28)
70
(17)
(21)
(35)
70
767

(9)
(3)
(3)
1
(28)
(35)
*6
*107
268
90
947

(12)
2
1
79
66
*(17)
*(44)
17
1
330

(325)
1
(30)
(26)

(384)
16
(25)
(6)

(418)
20
(23)
(6)

(2)

21
(3)

4
-

(4)
4
(2)
(6)

(52)
697
(5)
-

(590)
702
-

2

13
8

30

170
(1)
4
(215)

(270)
(1)
3
12

40
(6)
1
(246)

See Note 2.G regarding reclassification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31 (cont’d)

2016
NIS millions

2015
NIS millions

2014
NIS millions

Cash flows from financing activities
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Repayment of capital note
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net
Repayment of bonds
Transaction costs in relation to replaced bonds
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Exercise of share options by employees
Receipt of long-term loans from banks
Repayment of long-term loans from banks
Partners’ withdrawals from partnership

(22)
(8)
(587)
(3)
(174)
(100)
(3)
(17)

313
(588)
(162)
(2)
(15)

(171)
(171)
(70)
*3
(5)
(12)

Net cash used in financing activities

(914)

(454)

(426)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(362)

505

(342)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

746

241

583

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

384

746

241

*

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 1 - General
A.

The reporting entity

Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – the “Company” and/or “Shufersal”) is an Israeli resident company
incorporated in Israel. The address of the Company’s registered office is 30 Benjamin Shmotkin Street,
Rishon-Le-Zion. The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at December 31, 2016 comprise
the Company, its subsidiaries (hereinafter together – “the Group”) and an investment in an associate.
The Company is mainly held by Discount Investment Corporation Ltd., which is the Company’s
controlling shareholder (which is controlled by IDB Development Corporation Ltd.), see note 1(b)(9)
below. The Group is involved in the operation of a chain of supermarkets in Israel. The Group also
operates in the area of real estate (through Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary) and
as part of this activity owns shopping centers and commercial centers, as well as manages a credit card
loyalty program (through Shufersal Finance Limited Partnership) through which it offers the Shufersal
and Yesh credit cards. The securities of the Company are registered for trade on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange.
B.

Material events in the reporting period

(1)

The Company is continuing in its implementation of the updated business plan that was
approved on June 26, 2014 by the Board of Directors and is aimed at creating commercial and
operational infrastructure for growth in the coming years, bolstering its ability to compete, and
improving the value offered to the customer, including a cheaper shopping basket and better
service.
As part of the plan’s implementation, in 2014 the Company recognized in the statement of
income non-recurring operating expenses in the amount of NIS 184 million before an allocation
of taxes (NIS 144 million net after an allocation of taxes) in respect of the effect of the aforesaid
plan. Furthermore, the Group recorded an amount of NIS 4 million before an allocation of taxes
(NIS 3 million net after an allocation of taxes) within other comprehensive loss, in respect of a
voluntary retirement plan.
In the reporting period the Company reexamined branches having operating and cash flow
losses in the geographical locations and reached the conclusion that 9 branches and storage
facilities of all the branches that were examined either no longer or only partly provide an
operating and/or strategic contribution to the geographical location (the cash-generating unit)
they belong to and therefore it was decided to close 7 branches and 2 storage facilities that are
rented by the Company. Additionally, it was decided to downsize 2 branches under operating
lease. The Company tests impairment of branches and storage facilities it decided to close
separately from the cash generating unit to which they belong, and calculates the recoverable
amount for each branch and storage facility in itself. Total expenses for those branches and
storage facilities is NIS 20 million (about NIS 15 million net after allocation of taxes) and was
recognized in the statement of income within the selling and marketing item. See Notes 10(d)
and 15(1) regarding the composition of these expenses.

(2)

For information regarding the Law for the Promotion of Competition in the Food Industry –
2014, see note 30(a) regarding contingent liabilities and commitments.

(3)

On February 28, 2016, the board of the Company declared a NIS 100 million dividend, or
NIS 0.47 per share. The dividend was paid on April 4, 2016 to shareholders as of March 21,
2016.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 1 – General (cont’d)
B.

Material events in the reporting period (cont’d)

(4)

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Group acquired from a third party the remaining shares of
Shufersal Bailsol Investments Ltd, in which the company held 50% of equity and 51% of voting
rights prior to the transaction, in consideration for NIS 30 million, such that after the
acquisition, the Group holds 100% of the shares of that company. The transaction was
accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interest, and therefore, the Group recognized
a NIS 9 million reduction in non-controlling interests and a NIS 13 million reduction of retained
earnings.

(5)

In the reported period, the Company updated collective agreements, and in April 5, 2016, the
Company signed the extension to December 31, 2017. In addition, individual employment
contracts were revised.

(6)

In July 2016, the Company offered all holders of Series B bonds of the Company to buy back
from them up to NIS 511 million par value of Series B bonds of the Company that they held
(which represented 50% of the par value of outstanding Series B bonds), by way of partial
exchange offer, in exchange for issuing NIS 601 million par value of Series F bonds of the
Company by way of expanding the series based on a replacement ratio of 1.175 Series F bonds
for each NIS 1 par value of Series B bonds. There was full demand, and the Series B bonds that
were bought back by the Company was cancelled and delisted from TASE. The value of the
replaced bond was NIS 645 million (including interest payable).
The replacement transaction does not materially change the terms of the bonds and was
accounted for as continuing the existing debt, while the expenses related to the replacement
were deducted from the remaining debt as of replacement date and are amortized using the
effective interest method over the remaining period.
For information on the terms of the bonds, see note 17.

(7)

In November 2016, the Company offered all holders of Series B bonds of the Company to buy
back from them up to NIS 512 million par value of Series B bonds of the Company that they
held (which represented 100% of the par value of outstanding Series B bonds), by way of
exchange offer, in exchange for issuing NIS 641 million par value of Series E bonds of the
Company by way of expanding the series based on a replacement ratio of 1.2524 Series E bonds
for each NIS 1 par value of Series B bonds. There was 72.23% demand, or NIS 370 million par
value of Series B bonds, in exchange for issuance of NIS 463 million par value of Series E
(based on the above replacement ratio). The Series B bonds that were bought back by the
Company were cancelled and delisted from TASE. The value of the replaced bond was NIS 475
million (including interest payable).
The replacement transaction does not materially change the terms of the bonds and was
accounted for as continuing the existing debt, and the expenses related to the replacement were
deducted from the remaining debt as of replacement date and are amortized using the effective
interest method over the remaining period.
For information on the terms of the bonds, see note 17.
00

Convenience translation of original financial statements in Hebrew

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 1 – General (cont’d)
B.

Material events in the reporting period (cont’d)

(8)

During the year, the Company performed three swap transactions for replacement of CPIlinked, fixed NIS cash flows. The hedged instrument comprises principal and interest payments;
interest will accrue on an annual basis as from the inception of the hedge in respect of a
proportionate share of NIS 600 million out of the Series F bond at NIS 918 million. The amount
of hedging instruments is NIS 600 million. The transactions are accounted for as accounting
hedges. See note 24.

(9)

In September 2016, Discount Investment Corporation (hereinafter - "DIC"), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and Bronfman Fischer (B.F.) Commerce Limited Partnership
("Bronfman Fischer"), an interested party of the Company, entered an acquisition agreement
(the "acquisition agreement"), whereby DIC acquired from Bronfman Fischer 9,097,127
ordinary shares of the Company for NIS 14.62 per share.
Concurrently to signing the acquisition agreement, a shareholders agreement between DIC and
Bronfman Fischer dated March 21, 2007 (as amended over the years) expired and terminated
with immediate effect. Accordingly, on the same date, Mr. Yakov Shalom Fischer and Mr. Ron
Hadassi filed their resignation from the Company's board. Additionally, under the acquisition
agreement, Bronfman Fischer granted DIC an option to acquire up to additional 9,097,127
ordinary shares of Shufersal it is holding for an exercise price of NIS 14.62 per share (subject to
standard market adjustment). The option expired on December 12, 2016.
On the date of option expiry, according to a notice by DIC, it acquired 5,304,102 shares of the
Company. Accordingly, the holding rate of DIC in the issued capital of Shufersal increased to
60.67% (approx. 59.04% fully diluted), excluding dormant shares.

C.

Definitions

In these financial statements –
1.

The Company – Shufersal Ltd.

2.

The Group – The Company and its subsidiaries.

3.

Subsidiaries – Companies, including a partnership, the financial statements of which are fully
consolidated, directly or indirectly, with the financial statements of the Company.

4.

Investee companies – Subsidiaries and companies, including a partnership or joint venture, the
Company's investment in which is stated, directly or indirectly, on the equity basis.

5.

Related party – Within its meaning in IAS 24 (2009), “Related Party Disclosures”.

6.

Interested parties – Within their meaning in Paragraph (1) of the definition of an “interested
party” in Section 1 of the Securities Law - 1968.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation
A.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Securities Regulations (Preparation
of Annual Financial Statements) - 2010.
The consolidated statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on February
21, 2017.
B.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in NIS, which is the Company’s functional
currency, and have been rounded to the nearest million. The NIS is the currency that represents the
principal economic environment in which the Company operates.
C.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets
and liabilities:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Financial instruments, derivatives and other assets and liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss;
Inventory measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
Investment in an associate.
Investment property measured at fair value.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Assets and liabilities for employee benefits.
Provisions

For further information regarding the measurement of these assets and liabilities, see Note 3 regarding
significant accounting policies
D.

Use of significant estimates and judgments

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management of the Company prepares the estimates
on the basis of past experience and other matters that may, under certain circumstances, affect the
considerations used for determining the amount of the assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
The preparation of accounting estimates used in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make assumptions regarding circumstances and events that involve considerable
uncertainty. Management of the Company prepares the estimates on the basis of past experience, various
facts, external circumstances, and reasonable assumptions according to the pertinent circumstances of
each estimate. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
D.

Use of significant estimates and judgments (cont’d)

Information about assumptions made by the Group with respect to the future and other reasons for
uncertainty with respect to estimates that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year are included in the following notes:


Recoverable amount of cash generating units (the Company’s branches and sites) – see
Note 3.H(2) regarding impairment testing.



Recoverable amount of cash-generating unit including goodwill (retail segment) – See Note
12 regarding testing the recoverable amount of the retail segment.



Fair value measurement of investment property – See Note 11 regarding fair value
measurement.



Post-employment employee benefits – See Note 3.J regarding measurement of the defined
benefit liability and Note 18.



Assessment of probability of contingent liabilities – See Note 3.K(2) regarding provisions and
Note 15(2).



Taxes on income, as to recognition of deferred tax asset in respect of losses – See Note 3.O
and Note 28.



Onerous contracts – See Note 15(1).

E.

Operating cycle

The Group’s operating cycle is one year.
F.

Determination of fair value

Preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to determine the fair value of certain assets and
liabilities. Further information about the assumptions that were used to determine fair value is included in
the following notes:
•
Note 11, on investment property;
•
Note 22, on share-based payments; and
•
Note 24, on financial instruments;
When determining the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as much
as possible. There are three levels of fair value measurements in the fair value hierarchy that are based on
the data used in the measurement, as follows:
•
•
•

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly
or indirectly
Level 3: inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
G.

Change in classification

(1)

The Group split the balance of liability for acquisition of a partnership to a separate line item in
the statement of financial position. Comparative information was reclassified for consistency,
such that NIS 133 million were reclassified from accounts payable to liability for option to
acquire partnership in current liabilities as of December 31, 2015.

(2)

The Group reclassified inventory on consignment that is held by suppliers in the statement of
financial position from accounts receivable to inventory. Comparative information was
reclassified for consistency, such that NIS 13 million were reclassified from accounts receivable
to inventory as of December 31, 2015.

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently for all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities, including an
associate, except as explained in Note 2, Basis of Preparation.
A.

Basis of consolidation

(1)

Business combinations

(a)

General

The acquisition method is applied in business combinations. The acquisition date is the date on which
the acquirer obtains control over the acquiree. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the acquiree and it has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the acquiree. Substantive rights held by the Group and others are taking into
account when assessing control.
The Group recognizes goodwill on acquisition according to the fair value of the consideration
transferred including any amounts recognized in respect of rights that do not confer control in the
acquiree as well as the fair value at the acquisition date of any pre-existing equity right of the acquirer
in the acquiree, less the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Furthermore, goodwill is not adjusted in respect of the utilization of carry-forward tax losses that
existed on the date of the business combination.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
A.

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(1)

Business combinations (cont’d)

(a)

General (cont’d)

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of the assets transferred to the previous owners of
the acquiree and the liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the acquiree.
Transaction costs directly related to the business combination, such as advisory fees, broker fees, legal
fees, valuation costs, are expensed in the period the services are received.
(b)

Issuance of put option to non-controlling interests

A put option issued by the Group to non-controlling interests that is settled in cash is recognized as a
liability at the present value of the exercise price. In subsequent periods, revaluation of the liability in
respect of the time factor is recognized as a financing expense. Revaluation of the liability in respect of
business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2010, stemming from changes in the estimated
amount of the payment, is recognized in goodwill. The Group’s share of a subsidiary’s profits includes
the share of the non-controlling interests to which the Group issued a put option.
Subsequent to January 1, 2010, the Group has not issued new put options to non-controlling interests.
(2)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control is lost.
(3)

Investment in an associate accounted for by the equity method

An associate is any entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. A rebuttable assumption is used that holding of between 20%
and 50% of another entity gives significant influence. In assessing significant influence, potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible into shares of the investee are taken into account.
Joint ventures are joint arrangements in which the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
The investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method and is recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the income and expenses in profit or loss and of other comprehensive
income of an equity accounted investee, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of
the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that
significant influence or joint control ceases.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
A.

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(3)

Investment in an associate accounted for by the equity method (cont’d)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted associate, the carrying
amount of that interest is reduced to zero. The recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has an obligation to support the investee or has made payments on behalf of the
investee.
In addition, within the framework of its investment in general, which includes a long-term loan granted
to the investee, the Group examines the repayment ability of loans granted by the Group to the associate
and accordingly considers the need for recognizing/reversing impairment in respect of such loans.
(4)

Transactions eliminated upon consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions
with subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
(5)

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the equity of a subsidiary that cannot be attributed, directly or
indirectly, to the parent company.
Allocation of comprehensive income or loss to the shareholders
Profit or loss and any part of other comprehensive income are allocated to the owners of the Company
and the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income or loss is allocated to the owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interests even if the result is a negative balance of non-controlling
interests.
B.

Financial instruments
As from January 1, 2012 the Group has early adopted IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments
(hereinafter – IFRS 9), as regards the classification and measurement of financial assets, with a
date of initial application of January 1, 2012, without early adopting the rest of the rules
provided in the final version of IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments, which is mentioned in
Section 1 of Note 3.R hereunder. IFRS 9 requires that an entity classify its financial assets as
being measured at amortized cost or fair value according to the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. IFRS 9 permits, in certain circumstances, the inclusion of changes in the fair value of the
assets in other comprehensive income (loss).
In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the financial assets held by the Group
at the date of initial application (those not yet derecognized as at January 1, 2012) are classified
based on the facts and circumstances of the business model by which they were managed at that
time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

1.

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets
The Group has non-derivative financial assets as follows: investments in shares and debt
instruments, a short-term deposit, loans and borrowings granted, trade and other receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents.
Initial recognition of financial assets
The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
created. All other financial assets acquired in a regular way purchase are recognized initially on
the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, meaning on the date the Group undertook to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are initially measured at fair value. If the financial asset is not subsequently accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss, then the initial measurement includes transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the asset acquisition or creation. The Group subsequently measures
financial assets at either fair value or amortized cost.
Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights of the Group to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or the Group transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on
the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred.
Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized
as a separate asset or liability.
Regular way sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, meaning on the date the
Company undertook to sell the asset.
See hereunder in section regarding non-derivative financial liabilities as to the offset of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method
and net of any impairment loss, if:
●
the asset is held within a business model with an objective to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows;
●
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest; and
●
the Group has not elected to designate them at fair value through profit or loss in order to
reduce or eliminate an accounting mismatch.
The fair value of financial assets measured at amortized cost including trade and other
receivables is determined on the basis of the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
the market interest rate at the date of measurement. Short-term trade and receivables without a
stated interest rate are measured at the amount specified on the original invoice, if the
discounting effect is immaterial. The fair value of loans and receivables is determined at initial
recognition.
The Group’s policy regarding impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost is
described in Section 1 of Note 3.H hereunder.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(1)

Non-derivative financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents – Cash comprises cash balances available for immediate use and call
deposits. Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid investments (with original
maturities of three months or less) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
are exposed to insignificant risks of change in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
Financial assets measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those classified as measured at amortized cost are subsequently
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Group has non-derivative financial liabilities as follows: bonds issued by the Company,
loans and borrowings from banks and others, finance lease liabilities, trade and other payables.
Initial recognition of financial liabilities
The Group initially recognizes debt securities issued on the date they originated. All other
financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, less any transaction costs that are
directly attributable. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost according to the effective interest method.
Transaction costs directly attributable to an expected issuance of an instrument that will be
classified as a financial liability are recognized as an asset in the statement of financial position.
These transaction costs are deducted from the financial liabilities at initial recognition, or are
amortized as financing expenses in the statement of income when the issuance is no longer
expected to occur.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation of the Group, as specified in the
agreement, expires or when it is discharged or cancelled.
Modification of debt instrument terms
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability at fair value. Similarly, a substantial modification of the
terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
In such cases, the difference between the carrying amount of the original financial liability and
the fair value of the new financial liability is recognized in profit or loss in financing income or
expenses.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid (net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate), is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
In addition to the above quantitative test, the Group tests, among other things, whether changes
took place also in different economic parameters that are embedded in the exchanged debt
instruments.
Offset of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(2)

Derivative financial instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments for the purpose of economically hedging its
linkage and foreign currency exposures, when hedge accounting is not applied in their respect.
These derivatives are recognized initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss as part of financing
income or financing expenses. The fair value of forward contracts is based on their quoted
market price.

(3)

Accounting hedge
Financial assets that are designated as hedged items are initially recognized at fair value on the
date of engaging in the hedge contract, and remeasured in subsequent periods at fair value.
The Group documents at inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the income statement within "financing
expenses (income), net".
Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the period when the hedged
item affects profit or loss. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging variable rate borrowings is recognized in the income statement within finance
expenses, net. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is also immediately recognized
in the income statement within "other income (expenses), net".

(4)

CPI-linked assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value
The value of CPI-linked financial assets and liabilities, which are not measured at fair value, is
remeasured every period in accordance with the actual change in the CPI.

(5)

Share capital
Ordinary shares – Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Treasury shares - When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased by the Group, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax
effects, is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury
shares and stated as a deduction from equity.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
C.

Property, plant and equipment

(1)

Recognition and measurement
Fixed asset items are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, as well as any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located (when the Group has an obligation to dismantle and remove the asset or
to restore the site), and capitalized borrowing costs.
Spare parts, servicing equipment and stand-by equipment are to be classified as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment in IAS 16, and
are otherwise to be classified as inventory.
Gains and losses on disposal of a fixed asset item are determined by comparing the net proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized net within “other
income” or “other expenses”, as relevant, in profit or loss.

(2)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of a fixed asset item and other subsequent expenses are capitalized if
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Group and
their cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part of a fixed asset
item is derecognized. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(3)

Reclassification to investment property
See Section E hereunder.

(4)

Determination of fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized in business
combinations
The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized as a result of a business combination
is based on market values. The market value of property, plant and equipment is the estimated
amount for which a fixed asset could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction wherein the parties each acted
knowledgeably.

(5)

Depreciation
Depreciation is a systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
The depreciable amount is the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value.
An asset is depreciated from the date it is ready for use, meaning the date it reaches the location
and condition required for it to operate in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of the fixed asset item, since this method most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets
under finance lease agreements including lands and leasehold improvements are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Freehold land is not depreciated.
10
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
C.

Property, plant and equipment
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings
50 years

Leasehold improvements
3-25 years

Equipment and installations
3-24 years (mainly between10 and 14 years)

Motor vehicles
5-7 years

Lands under finance lease
Over the lease period
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting year and adjusted if appropriate.

D.

Intangible assets

(1)

Goodwill
Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries, acquisition of an operation in a
business combination and goodwill that arises upon the recognition of a liability from a put
option issued by the Group to non-controlling interests, is included in intangible assets. For
information on measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see Paragraph A(1) of this note.
In subsequent periods goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is not amortized systematically but at least once a year is tested for possible
impairment.

(2)

Fair value of intangible assets created in business combinations
The fair value of intangible assets created in business combinations (including customer
relations and non-competition agreements) is based on the discounted value of cash flows
expected to be derived from the use of these assets and their sale. This method required
determination of an appropriate discount rate for the type of asset and its risk level.

(3)

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

(4)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

(5)

Amortization
Amortization is a systematic allocation of the amortizable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life. The amortizable amount is the cost of the asset less its residual value.
Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful
lives of the intangible assets from the date they are available for use, since this method most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in each asset. Internally generated intangible assets (such as cost of software) are not
systematically amortized so long as they are not available for use, namely, so long as they are
not in the working condition for their intended use. Accordingly, these intangible assets are
tested for impairment at least once a year, until such date as they are available for use.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
D.

Intangible assets (cont’d)

(5)

Amortization (cont’d)
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:






Software
Concession arrangement
Customer relationships
Leases
Non-competition agreements

3-7 years
8-10 years
5-10 years
3-21 years
2-5 years

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year
and adjusted if appropriate.

E.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for:
1.
Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
2.
Sale in the ordinary course of business.
Investment property is initially measured at cost including costs directly attributable to its acquisition. In
subsequent periods the investment property is measured at fair value with any changes therein recognized
in profit or loss. The cost of self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct
labor, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition
for their intended use.
Investment property under construction is measured at fair value when its value can be reliably
determined. When the fair value cannot be reliably determined, investment property under construction is
measured at cost during the construction period until either construction is completed or its fair value
becomes reliably determinable, whichever occurs earlier.
A liability for the payment of a betterment levy on investment property is recognized when the rights are
exercised. Accordingly, the negative cash flows in respect of the levy are included in the fair value
measurement of investment property before recognition of the liability for payment of a betterment levy.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
E.

Investment property (cont’d)

Any gain or loss on sale of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from the sale and the carrying amount of the item at the last financial reporting date) is recognized in
profit or loss under increase in fair value and gain on sale of investment property, net. When an investment
property that was previously classified as a fixed asset is sold, any related amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Reclassification to investment property
When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, which is measured at
fair value, the property is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain
arising on remeasurement is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in a
revaluation reserve, unless the gain reverses a previous impairment loss on the specific property, in
which case the gain is first recognized in profit or loss. Any loss is recognized directly in profit or loss.
When an investment property that was previously classified as a fixed asset is sold, any related amount
included in the revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

F.

Leased assets

Leases, including leases of lands from the Israel Lands Administration, where the Group assumes
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial
recognition the leased asset is measured and a liability is recognized at an amount equal to the lower of its
fair value and the present value of the future minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
When a lease includes both a land component and a buildings component, each component is considered
separately for the purpose of classifying the lease, with the principal consideration regarding the
classification of land being the fact that land normally has an indefinite useful life.
The Group leases lands from the Israel Lands Administration (hereinafter – "the Administration")
undercapitalized and non-capitalized leases for a period of 49 years with an option for additional 49 years.
Within the framework of non-capitalized leases, the Group recognized a liability in respect of minimum
future lease payments, discounted at a real interest rate of 5% as of date of engagement with the
Administration, based on an interest rate used by the Administration at that date. The minimum lease
payments paid under a finance lease are divided between financing expenses and the amortization of the
balance of liability.
The Group did not recognize an asset and liability in respect of future payments for exercising an option
to extend the lease period since these payments constitute contingent lease payments that are derived
from the fair value of the land on the future date of exercising the option.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Inventories

Inventories constitute mainly goods at the Company's stores and warehouses. The cost of inventories is
based on the “moving average” method. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and the costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of work in
progress and manufactured inventories, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity. The value of inventories is measured as the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The net realizable value as above is tested on an ongoing basis taking into consideration the type of
product and its age, in accordance with past experience of the Company regarding the life of the product.
H.

Impairment

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets
The Group tests for impairment a financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss
when objective evidence indicates that one or more loss events has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and these events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, indications
that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers,
changes in the economic environment that correlate with insolvency of issuers or the
disappearance of an active market for a security, and observable data indicating a measurable
decrease in the cash flow expected from a group of financial assets.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
For significant financial assets measured at amortized cost, the Group considers evidence of
impairment for each asset separately. All other financial assets measured at amortized cost are
collectively assessed according to groups having similar risk characteristics.
Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in a provision for loss against the financial
asset measured at amortized cost. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to application of
the effective interest method are reflected as a component of financing income (expenses).
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
H.

Impairment (cont’d)

(2)

Non-financial assets
Timing of impairment testing
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than investment property,
inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If there are indications of impairment, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Once a year and on the same date, or more frequently if there are
indications of impairment, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of each cash generating
unit that contains goodwill.
Measurement of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit, for
which the estimated future cash flows from the cash generating unit were not adjusted.
Determining cash-generating units
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. For the purpose of
impairment testing of goodwill acquired in a business combination, cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is
performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes,
and which is not greater than the segment of operation prior to aggregation.
The Company’s corporate assets
The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilized by more
than one cash-generating unit. Certain corporate assets are allocated to cash-generating units on a
reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of testing of the cash-generating
units to which the corporate assets are allocated. Other corporate assets that cannot be allocated
reasonably and consistently to cash-generating units are tested for impairment as part of the retail
segment as a whole.
The impairment test testing process in the Group with respect to "cash generating units" is
conducted in three stages:
Stage one – at the end of each reporting period, the Group examines each of its stores for signs
indicating impairment of the store.
Stage two – stores with a discounted cash inflow that does not exceed the amortized cost of the
store's assets are tested as part of a cash generating unit that constitutes a geographic unit, when
the positive cash inflows of one store depend on the cash inflows of another store located in the
same geographic area. A cash generating unit is a group of stores operating in the same
geographic area, this in view of the Group’s strategy, according to which closing a losing store in
an area where other branches are located might reduce the profitability of other stores located in
that same geographic area.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
H.

Impairment (cont’d)

(2)

Non-financial assets (cont’d)
Stage three – The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the identified cash generating unit,
as above, which includes the store that has a discounted cash inflow that does not exceed the
amortized cost of the assets of the store. If this amount is lower than the carrying amortized cost,
an impairment of the cash generating unit is recognized.
In determining the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit, the Group uses forecasts of cash
inflows that reflect the present condition of the asset and represent the best estimate of the
economic conditions that will prevail during the remaining useful life of the asset.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. The
Company is testing impairment of branches it decided to close separately from their respective
cash generating units and calculates recoverable amounts for each branch individually.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount, after reversal of the impairment loss, does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

(3)

Investments in an associate accounted for by the equity method
An investment in an associate is tested for impairment when objective evidence indicates there
has been impairment
If objective evidence indicates that the value of the investment may have been impaired, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the investment, which is the greater of its value in use
and its net selling price.
See also Section A.(3) above regarding the recognition of the Group's share in losses of an
associate that exceeds the value of the Group’s interest in the associate accounted for by the
equity method.
An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the investment, after applying the
equity method, exceeds its recoverable amount, and it is recognized in the statement of income
under other expenses if it relates to an investment in shares and in financing expenses if it relates
to the component of loans.
An impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of the investment after the impairment loss was recognized, and only to
the extent that the investment’s carrying amount, after the reversal of the impairment loss, does
not exceed the carrying amount of the investment that would have been determined by the equity
method if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
I.

Capitalization of borrowing costs

Non-specific credit costs are capitalized to qualifying assets throughout the period required for completion
and construction until they are ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets in respect of which
a significant period of time is required to make them ready for their intended use or sale.
The Group capitalized non-specific credit costs to real estate and buildings. In this respect, a period of one
year or over is recognized by the Group as a significant period of time.

J.

Employee benefits

(1)

Post-employment benefits
The Group has a number of post-employment benefit plans. The plans are usually financed by
deposits with insurance companies and they are classified as defined contribution plans and as
defined benefit plans.
(a)

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognized as an expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
related services are rendered by employees.

(b)

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods.
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan
assets is deducted. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the thennet defined benefit liability (asset). The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date
on NIS-denominated high-quality corporate bonds that have a maturity date
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations at that date. The calculation is
performed ever year by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating
to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss upon amendment of the
plan.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise actuarial gains and
losses and the return on plan assets. Remeasurements are recognized immediately
directly in retained earnings through other comprehensive income. Interest costs on a
defined benefit obligation and interest income on plan assets are presented under
financing expenses and financing income, respectively.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
J.

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(1)

Post-employment benefits (cont’d)
(b)

(2)

Defined benefit plans (cont’d)
The Group has a small and immaterial number of executive insurance policies that were
issued before 2004, according to which the profit in real terms accumulated on the
severance pay component will be paid to the employees upon their retirement. In
respect of such policies, plan assets include both the balance of the severance pay
component and the balance of the profit in real terms (if any) on the severance pay
deposits that accumulated until the reporting date, and are presented at fair value. These
plan assets are for a defined benefit plan that includes two liability components: a
defined benefit plan component for severance pay, which is calculated on an actuarial
basis as aforementioned, and another component that is the obligation to pay the
accumulated profit in real terms (if any) upon the retirement of the employee. This
component is measured at the balance of the actual profit in real terms that accumulated
at the reporting date.

Other long-term employee benefits
The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than postemployment benefit plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on NIS-denominated highquality corporate bonds that have a maturity date approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations at that date. The calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method.

(3)

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Group is committed demonstrably,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognized as an expense if the Group has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable
that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

(4)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided or upon the actual absence of the employee when the
benefit is not accumulated (such as maternity leave). A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
J.

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(5)

Share-based payment transactions
The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as
a salary expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense in respect
of share-based payment awards that are conditional upon meeting service terms, is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest.

K.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability without adjustment for the Company’s credit risk. The carrying amount of the
provision is adjusted each period to reflect the time that has passed and the amount of the adjustment is
recognized as a financing expense.
(1)

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a
provision is established, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with
that contract.

(2)

Legal claims
A provision for claims is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation and it is more likely than not that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably. When the value of time is material, the provision is measured at its present value.

L.

Revenue

(1)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and trade discounts granted to the
customer at date of the transaction. When the credit period is short and constitutes the accepted
credit in the industry, the future consideration is not discounted. When the credit period is
longer than the accepted credit period in the industry, the Group recognizes the future
consideration discounted to its present value using the risk rate of the industry. The difference
between the fair value and the nominal amount of the future consideration is recognized as
interest revenue over the excess credit period.
Revenue is recognized upon delivery of the goods to the customer.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
L.

Revenue (cont’d)

(2)

Commissions and membership fees
Revenues receivable by a consolidated partnership with respect to commissions on transactions
in Shufersal credit cards are recognized in accordance with the rates and dates on which the
businesses are credited. Revenues from commissions in respect of credit spreads are recognized
upon charging the customer, and revenues from membership fees are recognized on a monthly
basis. When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the primary supplier in a
transaction, the revenue recognized is the net amount of commission made by the Group.

(3)

Rental income and management fees
Rental income from investment property and the management fees used for the current
operation of the property are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

(4)

Customer loyalty program
As part of product sale transactions, the Company grants its customers a loyalty award by way
of points which may be redeemed by future purchases of goods in its stores. A part of the
proceeds from the sale of products entitling the customer to an award is allocated between the
award credits and the other components of the sale. Revenues in respect of the proceeds from
the sale of products entitling the award, is recognized by the Company only upon redemption of
the award credits by the customer and the fulfillment of the Company's obligations in respect
thereof.

M.

Cost of sales

(1)

Cost of sales with respect to the retail activity, includes the cost of purchase of retail
inventories, net of supplier rebates, as stated below, and expenses with respect to the loss and
amortization of goods, shelf stocking, storage costs and transportation to the final point of sale.

(2)

Supplier rebates – these are recorded as a deduction from the cost of purchases. Accordingly the
part of rebates in respect of goods remaining in the closing inventory is attributed to the
inventory and only the other part of rebates reduces the cost of sales.
Some of the said rebates comprise fixed rate rebates that are not dependent on the volume of
purchases (the rebate is computed as a fixed percentage of turnover of purchases from the
supplier, or as a fixed annual amount regardless of the volume of purchases) and some are
variable rate rebates, which are recognized in the financial statements relatively to the purchases
entitling the Company to the rebate. Further to the Food Law coming into effect, as from 2015,
with respect to products the Food Law applies to, supplier rebates are given as part of the
purchase price per unit of the product, other than rebates given according to the Sales Law.

(3)

Cost of services and management – Costs applying to the operation and management of
commercial centers held by the Group as part of investment property, are recognized in profit or
loss as part of cost of sales and services.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
N.

Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise interest expense on bonds issued by the Company, interest expense on
borrowings, changes in the time value of provisions and a liability in respect of a put option granted to
non-controlling interests, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
impairment losses recognized on financial assets (other than losses on trade receivables that are
presented under general and administrative expenses), and losses on derivatives.
Financing income comprises interest income linkage differences on financial assets, income from
dividends, marketable securities, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and gains from derivatives. Interest income is recognized as it accrues. Dividend income is
recognized on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which, in the case of
quoted securities, is the ex-dividend date. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss also include income from
dividends and interest.
In the statements of cash flows, interest received and dividends received are presented as part of cash
flows from investing activities. Interest paid and dividends paid are presented as part of cash flows from
financing activities. Accordingly, financing costs that were capitalized to qualifying assets are presented
together with interest paid as part of cash flows from financing activities.
O.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current taxes and deferred taxes are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or to a transaction or event
that are recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. In such cases, the income tax
expense is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable (or receivable) on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current taxes also include taxes in respect of
prior years.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates, to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, either by way of selling the investment or by way of distributing dividends in respect of the
investment.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax benefits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
O.

Income tax expense (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets that were not recognized are reevaluated at each reporting date and recognized if it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
A provision for uncertain tax positions, including additional tax and interest expenses, is recognized
when it is more likely than not that the Group will have to use its economic resources to pay the
obligation.
P.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for treasury shares.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, after adjustment for treasury shares, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options.
Q.

Transactions with controlling shareholder

Assets and liabilities included in a transaction with a controlling shareholder are measured at fair value
on the date of the transaction. As the transaction is on the equity level, the Company includes the
difference between the fair value and the consideration from the transaction in its equity.
R.
1.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (hereinafter “the final version of IFRS 9”)
The final version of IFRS 9, which includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, and a new model for measuring impairment of financial
assets. This guidance has been added to the chapter dealing with general hedge accounting
requirements issued in 2013.
Classification and measurement of financial assets
In accordance with the final version of IFRS 9, there are three principal categories for
measuring financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The basis of classification for debt instruments is the
entity’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments will be measured at fair
value through profit and loss (unless the entity elected at initial recognition to present fair value
changes in other comprehensive income).
As described in Section B.(1) above, as from 2012 the Group early adopted the aforesaid
classification and measurement principles for financial assets, without early adopting the other
principles of the final version of IFRS 9 as described hereunder:
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.
1.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (cont’d)
IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (hereinafter “the final version of IFRS 9”) (cont’d)
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss that
are attributable to changes in its own credit risk, should usually be recognized in other
comprehensive income.
Impairment of financial assets
The final version of IFRS 9 presents a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for calculating
impairment. For most financial assets, the new model presents a dual measurement approach for
impairment: if the credit risk of a financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, an impairment provision will be recorded in the amount of the expected credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the twelve months after the
reporting date. If the credit risk has increased significantly, in most cases the impairment
provision will increase and be recorded at the level of lifetime expected credit losses of the
financial asset.
The group intends to adopt the final version of IFRS 9 without restating comparative
information, with adjustment to retained earnings and other equity elements as of January 1,
2018 (initial implementation date).
The Group examined the impact of implementing the standard and it believes that
implementation is not expected to have material impact on the financial statements.

2.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (hereinafter “IFRS 15”)
IFRS 15 replaces the current guidance regarding recognition of revenues and presents a new
model for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 provides two
approaches for recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model includes five
steps for analyzing transactions so as to determine when to recognize revenue and at what
amount. Furthermore, IFRS 15 provides new and more extensive disclosure requirements than
those that exist under current guidance.
IFRS 15 is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier
application is permitted. IFRS 15 includes various alternative transitional provisions, so that
companies can choose between one of the following alternatives at initial application: full
retrospective application, full retrospective application with practical expedients, or application
as from the mandatory effective date, with an adjustment to the balance of retained earnings at
that date in respect of transactions that are not yet complete.
The Group intends to adopt the standard on the date it becomes mandatory, beginning on
January 1, 2018, based on the transitional provisions that permit recognition of the cumulative
effect of initial application in the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2018
(i.e. without restatement of comparative information in previous reporting periods).
The Group examined the impact of implementing the standard and it believes that
implementation is not expected to have material impact on the financial statements.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (cont’d)

3.

IFRS 16, Leases (hereinafter “IFRS 16”)
IFRS 16 replaces the current guidance regarding leases. IFRS 16 annuls the existing
requirement from lessees to classify leases as operating or finance leases. Instead of this, for
lessees, IFRS 16 presents a unified model for the accounting treatment of all leases according to
which the lessee has to recognize an asset and liability in respect of the lease in its financial
statements. Similarly, IFRS 16 determines new and expanded disclosure requirements from
those required at present.
IFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods as of January 1, 2019, with the possibility of
early adoption, so long as the Group has also early adopted IFRS 15. IFRS 16 includes a
number of alternatives for the implementation of transitional provisions, so that companies can
choose one of the following alternatives at the implementation date: full retrospective
implementation or implementation from the effective date while adjusting the balance of
retained earnings at that date in respect of transactions that are not yet complete.
The Group is examining the impact of applying the standard on the financial statements,
without intention of early adoption.

4.

Amendment to IAS 40, Investment Property
The amendment clarified that an entity can transfer to, or from, investment properties when, and
only when, there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property. The amendment emphasizes that a change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
Additionally, the amendment states that the list of evidence for change in use specified in
paragraph 57 of IAS 40 is for illustration purposes only, and is non-exhaustive. The amendment
will be applied to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted. The amendment includes different options for transition, allowing companies to
choose one of the following options upon initial application: prospective application,
retrospective application according to IAS 8, without the use of hindsight.
The Company examines the impact of the amendment on the financial statements, without
intended early application.

S.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Group at exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the
reporting date are translated into the functional currency on the basis of the exchange rate in effect on
that date. Foreign exchange differences stemming from the translation to the functional currency are
recognized in profit or loss.

Note 4 - Short-Term Deposits

Unlinked deposits

Interest rate
%

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

0.31

100

270
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Note 5 - Investments in Investees
A.

Investment in an associate:
December 31
2016
NIS millions

Original cost
Long-term loans
Provision for impairment and the Group’s share in
losses (*)
Investment in associate, net

December 31
2015
NIS millions

8
83

8
83

(20)

(22)

71

69

The Group presents its investment in an associate with the addition of any long-term loans granted to it
that form a part of the net investment after deducting its share in the losses of the associate and less a
provision for impairment of the investment and the loans.
On August 4, 2015 the Group received from one of the partners in Lev Hamifratz a notice that was
addressed to it and the other partner in Lev Hamifratz (the Company, through a wholly owned
subsidiary, and the other partner hold 37% and 26% of Lev Hamifratz, respectively) by which it wishes
to sell all its holdings in Lev Hamifratz (37%) to a third party, including all the shareholders’ loans that
had been granted on its behalf to Lev Hamifratz (hereinafter – “the holdings”) and that this notice is
being provided to the Group and the other partner according to the right of first refusal mechanism
provided in the shareholders’ agreement between the parties. The Company (and to the best of its
knowledge also the other partner) did not exercise its right of first refusal. On January 13, 2016 the
Group received a notice from the same partner that was addressed to it and the other partner in Lev
Hamifratz by which it had signed a transaction to sell all its holdings in Lev Hamifratz (37%) to a third
party, including all the shareholders’ loans that had been granted on its behalf to Lev Hamifratz, for a
consideration of NIS 71 million (hereinafter “the consideration”). The transaction to sell was completed
on March 31, 2016.
The total effect on the Group’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 was revenue
in the amount of NIS 26 million from reversing a provision for impairment of a loan that had been
granted to Lev Hamifratz, which will be recognized in financing income in the period ended December
31, 2015.
In the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group recognized NIS 2 million as its share of income of
associate.
(*)

The loans bear interest in accordance with Section 3(j) of the Israeli tax Ordinance. In the
period of the report the nominal rate was 2.56% (2015: 3.05%). The repayment date of the loans
has not yet been set.
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Note 5 - Investments in Investees (cont’d)
B.

Details of dividends and profit distributions received from investee companies and
partnerships
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

From subsidiaries and partnership

C.

28

45

Additional details of material subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the Company
Amounts provided by the Company
to subsidiary
Loans/capital note
2016
2015
NIS millions

Shufersal Finance –
Limited Partnership
Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.**
Gidron Industries Ltd.

*
**

42

Assets less liabilities
of subsidiaries
2016

2015

954
-

*652
41

81
1,286
81

06
09096
74

954

692

1,382

09186

Reclassified
Assets less liabilities are according to the financial statements of Shufersal Real Estate Ltd. in
which branches leased to the Company are presented as investment property at fair value.

The companies’ country of incorporation and operation is Israel. See Note 35 regarding equity interests.
For information about the acquisition of remaining shares of Shufersal Bailsol Investments Ltd, see note
1(b)(4).

Note 6 - Marketable Securities

Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds (*)
Short-term loans (MAKAM)

(*)

Yield rate
December 31
2016
%

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

0.60
1.44
0.19

8
1
1

9
1
-

10

10

Investments in corporate Bonds rated at least "A" and at least "A2" by Maalot/Midroog, respectively.
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Note 7 - Trade and Other Receivables
A.

Trade receivables

Open debts
Checks and notes receivable
Less – provision for doubtful debts
Credit card companies

B.

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

86
55
139
(15)
124
959

78
42
120
)06(
104
1,041

1,083

1,145

Other receivables
December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

36
12
10
7
2
20

22
9
16
8
2
12

87

69

Advances to suppliers (*)
Prepaid expenses
Insurance assets
Trust deposits (**)
Loans to others
Other receivables

(*)
(**)

See note 2(g) concerning reclassification.
The balance in trust deposits is in respect of real estate sales of the Group.

See Note 33 on related and interested parties for information on other receivables due from related and
interested parties.

38

Convenience translation of original financial statements in Hebrew

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 8 - Inventory

Inventory of finished products (*)
Less provision for impairment of inventory
Total inventory of finished products
Raw materials and work in progress and packaging

(*)

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

715
(42)
673
4

684
(31)
653
3

677

656

See note 2(g) concerning reclassification.

Note 9 - Other Investments
December 31
2016
NIS millions

Investment in shares

18

December 31
2015
NIS millions

15

An investment in non-marketable shares of Wholesale Market for Agricultural Produce in Tel Aviv
Company Ltd., which is accounted for as a financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss.
For additional information, see note 24(e).
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Note 10 - Property, plant and equipment

Cost
Cost as at January 1, 2015
Additions
Disposals
Transfer to investment
property from property plant
and equipment
Transfer from investment
property to property plant
and equipment
Balance as at
December 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
Transfer to investment
property from property
plant and equipment
Transfer from investment
property to property plant
and equipment
Balance as at
December 31, 2016
Depreciation and
impairment losses
Balance as at
January 1, 2015
Depreciation and impairment
losses for the year
Transfer to investment
property
Disposals
Balance as at
December 31, 2015
Depreciation and impairment
for the year
Disposals
Balance as at
December 31, 2016
Carrying amounts
As at December 31, 2016
As at December 31, 2015
As at January 1, 2015

Buildings
including land
and lease rights
NIS millions

Leasehold
improvements
NIS millions

Equipment and
installations
NIS millions

Motor
vehicles
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

*1,818
*27
(3)

*1,462
*210
(15)

2,646
163
(37)

83
6
(7)

6,009
406
(62)

(4)

-

-

-

(4)

3

-

-

-

3

0,840

1,657

2,772

81

69351

55
-

101
(2)

157
(12)

15
(2)

329
(16)

(21)

-

-

-

(21)

6

-

-

-

6

1,882

1,756

2,917

95

6,650

428

882

1,998

35

3,343

30

79

138

11

258

(2)
-

(13)

(30)

(5)

(2)
(48)

456

948

2,106

40

39550

55
-

49
(2)

138
(12)

12
(1)

272
(15)

489

1,036

2,231

52

3,808

1,393
1,385
* 1,390

720
709
*580

686
666
648

43
41
48

2,842
2,801
2,666

* Reclassified
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Note 10 - Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
A.

Property, plant and equipment under construction and capitalized borrowing costs

The Group acquired land in previous years for the purpose of constructing on it a logistics center. The
costs invested in land and equipment in 2016 amounted to NIS 56 million (2015: NIS 125 million and
included borrowing costs in the amount of NIS 10 million that were capitalized to property, plant and
equipment under construction).
The logistics center began gradual operations in February 2016.
B.

Details on land rights and buildings used as property, plant and equipment by the Group

The Group leases from the Israel Lands Administration several lots of land that it uses as branches of
the chain for a period of 49 years. The Group has options to extend the period by an additional 49 years.
Some of the lands leased in Israel have not yet been registered under the name of the Group companies
at the Land Registry Office mainly due to registration procedures or technical problems.

C.

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment on credit

The balance of liabilities payable in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, which
comprise leasehold improvements and equipment, is approx. NIS 33 million and approx. NIS 25 million
as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
D.

Closing and downsizing of branches

For the purpose of impairment testing the Company’s branches are aggregated into geographical
locations that constitute separate cash-generating units (hereinafter – “cash-generating unit” or
“location”). The Group’s strategy is that closing a losing store in an area where other branches are
located might reduce the profitability of other branches located in that same geographical area, meaning
there is a dependence between the cash flows of branches in the same geographical area. Therefore, the
retail activity is tested for impairment on the level of the location, and the recoverable amount is calculated
with respect to the cash-generating unit.
In the reporting period the Company reexamined branches having operating and cash flow losses in the
geographical locations and reached the conclusion that 9 branches and storage facilities of all the branches
that were examined either no longer or only partly provide an operating and/or strategic contribution to the
geographical location (the cash-generating unit) they belong to and therefore it was decided to close 7
branches and 2 storage facilities leased by the Company, and in addition it was decided downside 2
branches under operating lease. Accordingly, the Company tested these branches for impairment
separately from the cash-generating unit they belong to and calculates the recoverable amount for each
branch in itself.
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Note 10 - Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
D.

Closing and downsizing of branches (cont’d)

As to the aforesaid branches and storage facilities, the Company calculated the recoverable amount in
accordance with IAS 36. The recoverable amount of the branches planned to be closed was measured
separately, on the basis of fair value less costs of disposal. The fair value measurements are classified at
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (for a definition of the different levels in the hierarchy, see note 24 about
financial instruments).
The key assumption in the calculation of the recoverable amount of the branches and storage facilities is
that these branches and storage facilities will not generate any economic benefits until they are closed, and
therefore equipment and leasehold improvements that are not expected to be sold or transferred to another
branch were fully written-off, whereas the other assets were tested on the basis of the economic benefits
the Company expects they will generate in the other branches. The recoverable amount of the equipment
and leasehold improvment in the branches that were decided to be closed is measured at fair value (level
3) less exercise costs, where the main assumption in their determination is that leasehold improvements in
the downsized branches will not generate economic benefits after the downsize, and therefore, fully
depreciated.
The recoverable amount of the branches that are planned to be closed, including the storage facilities and
the downsized branches mentioned above, is lower than their carrying amount and therefore an
impairment loss was recognized in the amount of NIS 20 million, before tax, for the year ended December
31, 2016, in respect of fixed asset items in those branches.

E.

See Note 31 regarding liens.
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Note 11 - Investment Property
Presented hereunder is the movement in investment property during the year (measured at level 3
of the fair value hierarchy):
Land and buildings
2016
2015

Balance as at January 1

Investment property
under construction
2016
2015
NIS millions

Total
2016

2015

435

439

33

26

468

465

15

5

11

4

26

9

15

6

11

3

26

9

13

-

(13)

-

-

-

-

(3)

-

-

-

(3)

21

2

-

-

21

2

2
66

7
17

9

7

2
75

7
24

Disposals during the year:
Sales

-

(21)

-

-

-

(21)

Balance as at December 31

501

435

42

33

543

468

Additions and changes in
fair value during the year:
Acquisitions and investments in
investment property and under
construction
Change in fair value and gain
on sale of investment
property, net
Transfer from investment
property under construction
to land and buildings
Transfer from investment property to
property, plant and equipment
Transfer from property, plant and
equipment to investment property
Changes in respect of
appreciation levies and
payments to the Israel
Lands Administration
Total additions
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
A.

Change in fair value and gain on sale of investment property, net

Measurement of fair value –
The Group’s investment property is measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The significant
inputs that were used to measure fair value are not observable in the market.
Rental properties for commercial purposes –
1.
Discounted income technique - The fair value is estimated using a discounted income
technique: the valuation model is based on net annual cash flows, which derive from the
property, discounted at a rate reflecting the specific risks inherent in them and as customary in
comparable properties. When actual rent agreements include rent payments that are different
from market rent, adjustments are made to reflect the actual rent payments in the period of the
contract. The valuations take into account the type of tenants and the financial strength of the
tenants that actually occupy the leasehold or are responsible for fulfilling the rental obligations
or may occupy the leasehold when available property is rented out; distribution of the
responsibility for the property’s maintenance and insurance between the Group and the tenant;
the physical condition and remaining economic life of the property, in those locations that these
parameters are relevant.
2.
Significant unobservable inputs –
Market rentals per meter of between NIS 10 and NIS 142 (mainly between NIS 50 and NIS 90
per meter).
Cash flow discount rate of between 7.4% and 10% (mainly between 7.5% and 8.5%) (2015:
7.5%-12%).
Investment property under construction –
1.
“Extraction method” – The valuation is based on extracting the estimated fair value of the
investment property after completion of its construction, based on net cash flows expected to be
received from the property at an appropriate discount rate, less the present value of the
estimated construction costs expected for its completion and less a reasonable entrepreneurial
profit when relevant, taking into account a discount rate adjusted for the property’s relevant
risks and characteristics.
2.
Significant unobservable inputs –
Construction costs per square meter of between NIS 4 thousand and NIS 5 thousand.
Entrepreneurial profit margin of about 15%-25%.
Cash flow discount rate of between 7.5% and 9% (2015: 7.75% and 9%).
Valuation processes used by the Company –
The fair value of the investment property is determined regularly by external, independent valuers
having appropriate recognized professional qualifications and experience in the location and category of
the property being valued. External valuations are performed regularly at the end of each year and are
reviewed by the Company’s property department. In the rest of the reporting periods the Group
performs internal valuations using a similar methodology, in order to confirm that there was no material
change in the value of the property. An external valuer will perform the valuation also in the case of
changes occurring in parameters that affect the value of the property.
The principal unobservable inputs are as follows:
a.
The entrepreneurial profit margin – the accepted entrepreneurial profit margin for new and old
commercial and office properties. Guidelines for entrepreneurial profit margins according to
guidelines of the Government Assessor.
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
A.

Change in fair value and gain on sale of investment property, net (cont’d)

Valuation processes used by the Company – (cont’d)
The fair value of investment property is determined every period by independent, external valuers who
have qualifications and experience that are relevant to the type and location of the property being
valued. External valuations are performed regularly at year-end, and reviewed by the Property
department of the Company. In other reporting periods, the Group performs internal tests using a similar
methodology in order to ensure that no material change has taken place in the value of the property. To
the extent changes in parameters occur that impact the value of the property, the valuation is examined
in such case and a valuation will be performed by an external valuer.
The main unobservable market inputs relate to the following factors:
a.

b.
c.
d.
e.

B.

Entrepreneurial profit margin – The common margin for commerce and offices in new or longstanding properties. The guidelines for entrepreneurial margin are based on the margins of the
Government Assessor.
The rate of return on investment property – based on data of the Government Assessor and the
rate of return in transactions of rental properties.
Market rent – based on the rent actually paid for commercial and office rental properties and on
information regarding rentals in the same area.
Costs of construction per square meter are based on the accepted costs in the industry for similar
buildings taking into account budgets determined by the Company’s engineer in each project.
The discount rate – based on data of the Government Assessor for the first half of 2016 that were
published in December 2016 as to rates of return on rental properties used for commercial
purposes taking into account components relating to risk, uncertainty and nature of the tenants
such as anchors, national chains, etc. Based also on rates of return and similar transactions.
Sales

In 2015, the Company sold investment properties for a total consideration of NIS 21 million. The
Company recognized a gain of NIS 5 million on these sales.
C.

Amounts that were recognized in the statement of income
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions

Rental income from investment property
Direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that generated rental
income during the period

2014

44

49

49

(26)

(20)

(19)

18

29

30
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
D.

Details on land rights considered investment property by the Group
End of
lease period*
Years

Freehold rights
Undercapitalized finance lease

*

2071-2109

December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

192
351

144
324

543

468

Including the period of the option.

Some of the freehold and leasehold lands in Israel have not yet been registered under the name of the
Group companies at the Land Registry Office mainly due to registration procedures or technical
problems.
E.

Details on lease agreements

The future minimum lease payments receivable under lease agreements over the period of the
agreement, without an option to extend the lease, are as follows:
Leasehold
assets
NIS millions

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

F.

December 31, 2016
Freehold
Assets
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

23
57
3

6
10
2

29
67
5

83

18

101

See Note 31 regarding liens.
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets and Deferred Expenses

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2015
Addition in respect of
commitment to exercise an
option to acquire the partners’
share in a partnership (**)
Withdrawal of profits by
partners in a partnership
Business combinations
Acquisitions
Balance as at
December 31, 2015
Addition in respect of
commitment to exercise an
option to acquire the partners’
share in a partnership (**)
Withdrawal of profits by
partners in a partnership
Business combinations
Acquisitions
Balance as at
December 31, 2016
Amortization
Balance as at January 1, 2015
Amortization for the year
Balance as at
December 31, 2015
Amortization for the year
Balance as at
December 31, 2016
Carrying amount
As at December 31, 2016
As at December 31, 2015
As at January 1, 2015

(*)
(**)

Purchase
tax
NIS millions

Rent

Concession,
noncompetition,
customer
relations and
rent

Total

Goodwill

Computer
programs

755

305

32

11

68

1,171

17

-

-

-

-

17

15
1
-

25

-

-

-

15
1
25

788

330

32

11

68

1,229

17

-

-

-

-

17

17
1
-

29

-

-

-

17
1
29

823

359

32

11

68

1,293

3
-

253
21

31
*-

5
*-

52
5

344
26

3

274

31

5

57

370

-

25

*-

1

2

28

3

299

31

6

59

398

820
785
752

60
56
52

1
1
1

5
6
6

9
11
16

895
859
827

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
See Note 14.
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets and Deferred Expenses (cont’d)
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested by management at the reporting business segment level, which reflects the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The following is summary of
goodwill information of business segments:
December 31
2016
NIS in millions
Retail segment
Loyalty program credit card segment
Reconciliation to consolidated financial statements

820
171
(171)
820

The share of goodwill that was fully attributed to the retail segment, is also attributed to the loyalty
program credit card segment.
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit – the retail segment, was based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The fair value was estimated by management of the Company on the basis of the
amount that represents the value of the Group on the stock exchange as at December 31, 2016 less the
difference between fair value of the investment property as measured in Shufersal Real Estate Ltd. and
the carrying amount of property as above, as measured in the accounts of the Company (excluding
reserves for tax and after reconciliation of the Company's marketable financial liabilities to fair value).
The resulting fair value is significantly higher than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit in
the Group’s annual financial statements, and therefore no impairment loss was recognized.
For information about assumptions in measurement of fair value of investment property as above –
1.

Revenue discounting techniques – Fair value is estimated using revenue discounting techniques:
the valuation model is based on annual cash flows, net, that are expected from the discounted asset
at discount rate reflecting the specific risks associated with them and as commonly applicable to
comparable assets. When lease agreements exist in practice, where payments for them differ from
appropriate lease payments, adjustments are made to reflect actual lease payments in practice over
the contract period. Valuations are calculated consider in the type of tenants and their financial
robustness of tenants that occupy the leased property in practice or responsible for meeting lease
obligations or those that may be in the leased property, after the lease of a vacant leased property;
division of responsibility between the Group of the tenants regarding property maintenance and
insurance; the physical position of the property and the remaining useful life of the property, in
such places where those are relevant.

2.

Unobservable significant data –
Branches that are leased to Shufersal Ltd:
The market value of lease payment per square meter is between NIS 50 to NIS 130 (mainly NIS 70
to NIS 110 per square meter).
Discount rate for cash flows is between 7% and 8%.
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets and Deferred Expenses (cont’d)
Goodwill (cont’d)
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit – the loyalty program credit card segment was
based on fair value less sale. In determining fair value, management relied on a valuation made to the
put option that was written by the Company to partners of the partnership, as discussed in note 14
"liability for options to acquire a partnership", including adjustments arising from the timing of fair
value measurement and use of the real discount rate of the partnership instead of using the original
interest rate in calculating the value of the put option. The resulting fair value is higher than the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit in the financial statements of the Group, and therefore, no
impairment loss was recognized.
The fair value measurements described above were included within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Note 13 - Accounts Payable
a.

Trade payables

The Company’s purchases from a major supplier amount to NIS 896 million in 2016 and NIS 986
million in 2015.
b.

Other payables
December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Advances from customers
Employees and other salary related liabilities
Institutions
Accrued expenses
Customer loyalty plan (club points)
Other

337
223
29
39
26
2

273
194
32
55
28
4

656

*586

See Note 33 on related and interested parties for information on trade payables and other payables due
to related and interested parties.
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade and other payables, and
information on linkage are disclosed in Note 24 on financial instruments.
* See Note 2.G regarding reclassification.
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Note 14 - Liability in respect of option to acquire partnership
On August 31, 2006, a partnership agreement (“the agreement”) was signed between the Company,
Leumi Card Ltd. (“Leumi Card”) and Paz Oil Company Ltd. (“Paz”) pursuant to which a limited
partnership (“the partnership”) would be founded by those companies that would be responsible for the
ongoing administrative activity of Shufersal’s credit cards. The partners’ share in the partnership is as
follows: Shufersal – 64%, Paz – 20% and Leumi Card Ltd. – 16%. The parties will split the profits
generated from the partnership’s operation on a pro-rata basis. Furthermore, on July 19, 2006 an
operating agreement was signed between Leumi Card and the Company pursuant to which Leumi Card
operates Shufersal’s credit cards (“the operating agreement”).
The agreement was set to be effective for 10 years as from its signing date (i.e. until July 19, 2016). The
agreement will be renewed automatically for additional periods of 18 months each unless one party
notifies the other party in writing at least 180 days before the end of the agreement or the extension that
it does not wish to renew the agreement. The agreement has been automatically renewed by 18 month as
from July 19, 2016.
The agreement provides arrangements between the partners as regards their holdings in the partnership,
including the grant of a call option to the Company to acquire the holdings of Leumi Card and Paz and
the grant of a put option to Leumi Card and Paz to sell their holdings to the Company, all according to
the terms specified in the agreement. As at December 31, 2016 the Group has recorded a liability to
acquire the share of the partners in the partnership in the amount of NIS 159 million (2015: NIS 133
million). The increase in the reporting period in the liability to acquire the partners’ share in the
partnership was recognized as goodwill in the amount of NIS 17 million and financing expenses in the
amount of NIS 9 million.
The estimated amount of the payment was measured according to the present value of the option which
is based on the actual cash flow from operations in 2016 and forecasts regarding the future cash flows of
the partnership. The estimated growth rate is 10% for 2017, 5% for 2018 and 1.2% beginning in 2019.
The real pre-tax discount rate of the partnership is 11.6% (after tax: 10.82%).

Note 15 - Provisions
December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Onerous contracts (1)
Customer claims
Provisions for claims and legal proceedings (2)

51
20
13

79
25
13

84

117
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Note 15 - Provisions (cont’d)
(1)

Onerous contracts
The Group has a number of lease agreements to commercial and storage spaces that cannot be
terminated.
Further to that mentioned in Note 10(d) about the branches and storage facilities that are planned
to be closed in 2016, these lease agreements cannot be terminated before the exit points provided
in the contract, which are 2017-2023. The Company plans to terminate the lease agreement at the
earliest possible date by reaching an arrangement with the owners of the property or by not
renewing the contract’s extension option. In those cases that the lease agreement cannot be
immediately terminated, the Company plans to discontinue the branch and/or storage facility
activity and if possible sublet the property until the end of the lease agreement.
In accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the
Company examined whether the agreements regarding these branches and storage facilities are
onerous contracts.
In accordance with the Company’s assessment and on the basis of the opinion of an external
valuer, an external agreements signed, as applicable, the revenue from the sub-lease of the
properties under those engagements, insofar as they can be sublet, and of the storage facilities,
according to the agreements signed in practice, are expected to be lower than the rent paid in
respect of the properties, and therefore, the Company recognized a provision in the amount of NIS
8 million, before tax, for the year ended December 31, 2016, which is the amount of the nonavoidable expenses required to meet the obligations embodied in the lease agreements. This
amount was measured using a risk-free interest rate.
Presented hereunder is the movement in onerous contracts:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year

79
8
(36)

107
20
(48)

Balance as at December 31

51

79

Presented in current liabilities
Presented in non-current liabilities

16
35
51

28
51
79
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Note 15 - Provisions (cont’d)
(1)

Onerous contracts (cont’d)

Presented hereunder are the lease and sub-lease payments that were recognized in the statement of
income:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions

Minimum lease payments that were
recognized as an expense (including an
additional provision for onerous contracts)
Revenue from sub-leases

(2)

2014

(408)
25

(397)
23

(504)
16

(383)

(374)

(488)

Provisions for claims and legal proceedings
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Provisions made during the year
Provisions reversed during the year (*)
Balance as at December 31

13
12
(12)

9
9
(5)

13

13

(*) From the total amount of provisions that were reversed in the reporting period the Group paid an
amount of NIS 8 million.
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in several legal claims against it.
Provisions for the costs that may arise from these claims are made only when it is more likely than not
that an obligation will be created for the Company as a result of past events and the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated. The amount of the provisions is based on an assessment of the risk
in each of the claims, and events occurring in the course of the legal proceeding may require a
reassessment of the risk. The Company’s assessment of the risk is based on both the opinion of its legal
advisors and its assessment regarding reasonable amounts of compromise arrangements that it is likely
to bear, if any such compromise arrangements are reached by the parties.
Presented hereunder are details of claims pending against the Company, classified into groups having
similar characteristics.
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Note 15 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)

Provisions for claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)

A.

Consumer claims

In the ordinary course of business, legal claims have been filed against the Company by its customers.
These are mostly motions to certify consumer claims as class actions, particularly concerning
allegations of illegal collection of funds, unlawful conduct or breach of license, or a breach of
agreements with customers, causing monetary and non-monetary damage to them. The Company
recognized a provision of an immaterial amount in respect of these consumer claims.
As at December 31, 2016, the total amount claimed from the Company by its customers is NIS 936
million. Of these claims, there are a number of claims in the amount of NIS 250 million, which due to
their preliminary stage the Company cannot assess the chances of their success.
In addition, motions to certify consumer claims as class actions were filed against the Company and
other defendants of which a total amount of NIS 238 million is attributed to the Company.
Further, motions to certify a consumer claim as a class action were filed against the Company and other
defendants in the amount of NIS 6,838 million without specifying the amount attributed to the
Company. Of these claims, there are a number of claims in the total amount of NIS 134 million that due
to their preliminary stage it is not yet possible to assess the chances of their success.
Presented hereunder is a breakdown of the number and total amounts of the consumer class actions
pending against the Company (including motions filed but not yet certified) as at December 31, 2016:
Amount of claim
Up to NIS 100 million
From NIS 100 million to NIS 500
million
Over NIS 1 billion (*)
No claimed amount specified
Total

Number of claims
39
2

Total amount claimed
(NIS millions)
642
598

1
3
45

6,772
8,012

(*) In this case, in August 2016, a motion to certify a class action was filed against the Company and
other defendants, based on the claim that the defendants did not properly examined and/or that they
or anyone on their behalf examined negligibly products that were marketed in food retail chains
and purchased by the plaintiff and which contained the salmonella bacteria. According to the
claims in the motion to certify, the defendants' practices allegedly indicate, among other things,
major malpractice, negligible and false presentation; violation of statutory duty in the Public Health
Ordinance, Product and Services Supervisor Decree (Food Quality), 1958; a fundamental breach of
contract between them and food consumers; unlawful enrichment; Defected Product Law;
Consumer Protection Law. The amount claimed from all defendants is NIS 6.8 billion.
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Note 15 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)

Provisions for claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)
On December 12, 2016, the plaintiffs filed, in a consolidated case, a motion to certify an amended
motion ("the amended motion"). From reviewing the amended motion, it appears that the plaintiffs
accepted the court's recommendation as expressed in a hearing, and that they did not include the
Company in it. In February, the parties filed a mutually-agreed motion to withdraw the motion
against the Company.
Based on the mutually-agreed to withdraw the motion, and with attention to the fact that the
amended motion does not include Shufersal, no provision was made in respect of this claim.

In the reported period, 18 motions for certifying consumer class actions against the Company were
rejected and settled, with a total claimed amount of NIS 297 million, with approval of the courts, for
immaterial amounts.
In addition, 10 motions for certifying consumer class actions against the Company and other defendants,
with a total value of NIS 166 million, were rejected with approval of the courts, for immaterial amounts.
After the date of this report, four motions for certifying consumer class actions were filed against the
Company, claiming unlawful conduct, causing monetary and non-monetary damages to customers. The
total amount attributed to the Company in respect to those claims is NIS 265 million. In this preliminary
stage, it is not yet possible to estimate the likelihood of claim success.
Further, two motions for certifying consumer class actions were filed against the Company and other
defendants. The total amount attributed to the Company in respect to those claims is NIS 6 million. At
this preliminary stage it is not yet possible to estimate the likelihood of claim success.
Additionally, six motions to certify consumer class actions against the Company and other defendants
with a total value of NIS 43 million were rejected and settled with approval of the courts for immaterial
amounts.

B.

Claims of employees, subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and others

In the ordinary course of business, various claims have been filed against the Company by employees,
subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and others which deal mostly in claims for breach of provisions of
the law governing termination of employment and obligatory payments to employees, claims for breach
of agreements and compulsory payments to authorities.
As at December 31, 2016, the amounts that are claimed from the Company under the said claims total
NIS 12 million.
In 2014, a claim was filed against the Company, the former Executive Vice President of Operations and
Supply Chain and four other managers of the Company (who are not officers). The claim alleges
violations of the Hours of Work and Rest Law – 1951 (“the law”), with respect to employees working
more overtime hours than that permitted by the law. In the opinion of the Company’s management, on
the basis of the opinion of its legal counsel, insofar as at the conclusion of the proceeding the Company
is convicted of the charges against it, the Company’s exposure is to the payment of an immaterial fine.
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Note 16 - Long-Term Liabilities to Banks and Others
This note provides information regarding the contractual terms of the Group’s interest bearing loans and
borrowings. Further information on the Group’s exposure to interest and liquidity risks is included in
Note 24 on financial instruments.
A.

Composition:
Interest rate
as at
December 31
2016
%

December
31, 2016
Carrying
amount
NIS millions

December
31, 2015
Carrying
amount
NIS millions

3.25-4.95

2

5

Capital note from external shareholders in
Shufersal Bailsol Ltd., a subsidiary (*)

-

8

Total

2

13

(2)

(3)

-

10

Israeli banks in Israeli currency:
Linked to the Consumer Price Index
Other in Israeli currency:

Less – current maturities
Total liabilities to banks and other less
current maturities

(*)

See note 1(b)(4) on the acquisition of Bailsol Investment (1987) Ltd in Shufersal Bailsol
Investments Ltd ("Shufersal Bailsol") by Shufersal Real Estate.

B.

See Note 31 regarding liens.

55

Convenience translation of original financial statements in Hebrew

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 17 - Bonds
This note provides information regarding the contractual terms of the Group’s Bonds. Further
information on the Group’s exposure to interest and liquidity risks is included in Note 24 on
financial instruments.
December 31, 2016

(1) Terms and composition
of the Bonds
CPI-linked Bonds
listed for trade on
the stock exchange:
Bonds (Series B)
April 2005
Bonds (Series B)
November 2005
Bonds (Series B)
March 2006
Bonds (Series B)
February 2007
Bonds (Series B)
December 2010
Bonds (Series D)
October 2013
Bonds (Series F)
September 2015
Bonds (Series F)
July 2016
listed for trade on
the stock exchange:
Bonds (Series C)
August 2009
Bonds (Series C)
December 2010
Bonds (Series E)
October 2013
Bonds (Series E)
November 2016

Less current maturities
Current maturities

(*)

December 31, 2015

Stated
interest rate
on date
of issue
NIS millions

Effective
interest rate
on date
of issue
NIS millions

Par value (*)
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

Par value (*)
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

5.20%

5.24%

42

53

400

511

5.20%

5.02%

23

30

224

286

5.20%

5.02%

15

19

147

188

5.20%

4.30%

36

47

349

451

5.20%

2.81%

26

33

245

325

2.99%

3.12%

384

384

413

413

4.30%

4.44%

317

317

317

318

4.30%

3.82%

601

626

-

-

5.45%

5.68%

63

65

125

131

5.45%

4.82%

51

54

102

108

5.09%

5.23%

364

365

392

393

5.09%

4.81%

463

475

-

-

2,385

2,468

2,714

3,124

255

(***)295

512

(***) 674

2,130

2,173

2,202

2,450

Par value of the Bonds
The par value balance of Bonds is in nominal values, unlinked.
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Note 17 - Bonds (cont’d)
(1)

Terms and composition of the Bonds

(**)

The carrying amount of linked Bonds
The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest
rate on the date of issue, and linked to the Consumer Price Index, as at the reporting date.
The carrying amount of unlinked Bonds
The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest
rate on the date of issue, without linkage to the CPI, as at the reporting date.

(***)

Includes accrued interest payable in the amount of NIS 34 million (2015: NIS 88 million).

(2)

In accordance with a shelf registration statement that was published by the Company on
September 3, 2015, in September 2015 the Company issued 316,673,000 Series F Bonds (“the
Bonds”) of a par value of NIS 1 each, linked (principal and interest) to the Consumer Price
Index (with the base index being the index published in respect of July 2015), the principal of
which will be payable in nine equal annual installments on October 8 of each of the years from
2020 to 2028 (inclusive). The principal of the Series F Bonds will bear annual interest at the
rate of 4.3%. The interest on the unpaid balance of the principal of the Series F Bonds will be
paid in thirteen (13) annual payments on October 8 of each of the years from 2016 to 2028
(inclusive).
The Series F Bonds were issued in consideration for their par value which amounted to a total
(gross) of NIS 317 million. The issuance expenses amounted to NIS 4 million.
The Bonds were rated ‘ilA’ by Maalot.

(3)

The Company’s Series D, E and F Bonds (hereinafter together – “the Bonds”) include a
mechanism adjusting the interest rate to changes in rating, as well as various financial
covenants as described hereunder:
Interest rate adjustment mechanism from change in the Bonds’ rating: right to early redemption
According to the terms of the Bonds, in the event of a change in the Bonds’ rating to one notch
lower than ilA (or a comparable rating), the annual interest rate (“the base interest”) shall
increase by 0.25%. In any event of an additional lowering of the rating the annual interest rate
will increase by an additional 0.25% in respect of each notch. In any event, the addition to the
interest rate that is due to the lowering of the rating shall not be more than 1% above the base
interest; all subject to and as detailed in the terms provided in the trust deeds of the Bonds (“the
trust deeds”). In this respect it is noted that according to the terms of the Bonds, if the Bonds are
rated less than “BBB-“ (or a comparable rating) and the rating is not raised within 60 days, this
will constitute cause for immediate repayment. The terms of the Bonds also grant the Company
the right to early redeem all or part of the Bonds at its own initiative, all according to the terms
provided in the trust deeds.
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Note 17 - Bonds (cont’d)
(3)

(cont’d)
Commitment to comply with financial covenants, commitment to not create a current pledge;
cross default
In the framework of the trust deeds the Company undertook to comply with financial covenants
as follows:
1.
The ratio between the Company’s net debt and total balance sheet at the end of each
calendar quarter, as presented in the reviewed or audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company, as relevant, for the relevant calendar quarter, shall not
exceed 60%. In this respect, “net debt” – the cumulative amount of the following
balance sheet items: current maturities in respect of long-term loans, current maturities
in respect of Bonds, long-term liabilities to banks and others and long-term liabilities in
respect of Bonds; less – cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposit and marketable
securities; all – as presented in the consolidated financial statements of the Company at
the end of the relevant period.
2.
The Company’s total equity (including non-controlling interests) at the end of each
calendar quarter, as presented in the reviewed or audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company, as relevant, for the relevant quarter, shall not fall below
NIS 550 million.
The Company shall be considered to be in breach of the aforesaid commitments only if it does
not comply with the relevant financial covenants for two consecutive calendar quarters.
In the trust deeds the Company undertook to not create a current pledge on all its assets in favor
of any third party, unless approved in advance by the meeting of the holders of the Bonds in a
special resolution.
It is also noted that among the causes for immediate repayment that are included in the trust
deeds is also the event of another debt of the Company (that is not a debt to holders of any of
the Company’s series of Bonds) to a bank or any financial institution (including an institutional
body) (other than a debt that is non-recourse to the Company) being called for immediate
repayment, providing that the total amount called for immediate repayment as aforesaid is
higher than NIS 300 million; an additional cause is another outstanding series of Bonds issued
by the Company being called for immediate repayment (not by the Company). The trust deeds
of the Series D and E Bonds limit the last cause and state that the amount of the other
outstanding series called for immediate repayment must be at least NIS 40 million. As at
December 31, 2015 the Company is in compliance with the aforesaid financial covenants.
Restrictions on dividend distribution
In the trust deeds, the Company undertook to not distribute a dividend to its shareholders and/or
to purchase its own shares and/or to make any other distribution per its definition in the
Companies Law:
1.

Insofar as the result of such a distribution is that the Company’s total equity (including
non-controlling interests) according to its consolidated financial statements, is less than
NIS 750 million.
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Note 17 - Bonds (cont’d)
(3)

(cont’d)
2.

Insofar as following such a distribution the ratio between the Company’s net debt (per
its definition above), calculated according to the most recent audited or reviewed (as
relevant) consolidated financial statements of the Company issued before the date of the
distribution, and the Company’s annual EBITDA (per its definition hereunder), taking
into consideration such a distribution, is higher than 7.
In this context, “annual EBITDA’ – the cumulative amount over a period of twelve (12)
calendar months of the Company’s operating profit (before other expenses and income),
plus depreciation and amortization, calculated according to the data included in the
Company’s reviewed or audited (as relevant) consolidated financial statements for the
last four (4) quarters preceding the date of the distribution.

3.

Insofar as on the date the Company’s Board of Directors decided on the aforesaid
distribution according to the provisions of the law, the Company is in breach of any of
its commitments to comply with the financial covenants required from it in the trust
deed or any of the causes provided in the trust deed for calling for immediate
repayment has occurred (relating only with respect to the Series F Bonds).

4

For information about bond exchanges made in 2016, see note 1(b)(6) and note 1(b)(7).

Note 18 - Employee Benefits
Post-employment benefits include benefits for retirement bonuses, gifts for retirees and future retiring
employees (for the years after their future retirement) and sick leave.
As regards post-employment employee benefits, the Group has defined benefit plans for which it
deposits amounts in individual severance pay funds and appropriate insurance policies.
Furthermore the Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of part of its employees who are
subject to Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law – 1963.
As regards share-based payments see Note 22 and as regards benefits to key management employees
see Note 33.D.
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
Composition of employee benefits:
December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

26
25
172

19
24
151

223

194

73
17
40
10

67
17
38
9

140

131

9

-

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

415
(275)

374
(243)

140

131

130
73
32
40

115
65
28
35

275

243

Presented under current liabilities – other payables:
Liability to employees for paid vacation
Liability to employees for recreation allowance
Liability to employees for salary

Presented under non-current liabilities – employee benefits:
Severance pay
Retirement bonus
Gifts to retirees and employees after retirement
Redemption of sick leave

Presented under non-current liabilities - other liabilities
Liability to employees for managers retention
program
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans

Composition
Total present value of obligations (1)
Less fair value of plan assets (1)
Total net liability recognized in respect of
defined benefit plan
Plan assets (insurance policies and central funds)
comprise as follows:
Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Equity instruments
Cash
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans (cont’d)

(1)

Movement in net defined benefit liabilities (assets) and in their components
Defined benefit
obligation
2016
2015

Balance as at January 1

Fair value of
plans assets
2016
NIS millions

2015

Total net liability recognized
in respect of defined
benefit plan
2016
2015

374

391

(243)

(253)

131

138

25
19

24
14

(16)

(9)

25
3

24
5

-

(11)

-

-

-

(11)

17

(4)

-

-

17

(4)

-

-

(6)

6

(6)

6

Other movements:
Benefits paid
Contributions paid by the Group

(20)
-

(40)
-

5
(15)

20
(7)

(15)
(15)

(20)
)7(

Balance as at December 31

415

374

(275)

(243)

140

131

Expense/income recognized in
profit or loss:
Current service cost
Interest costs
Recognized in other
comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains from
changes in financial
assumptions
Actuarial losses (gains) from
changes in demographic
assumptions
Actual return less interest
income

(2)

Actual return
Actual return on plans assets was 5% in 2016 (2015 - 1%, 2014 - 10%).

(3)

Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages):

Real discount rate as at December 31
Nominal discount rate as at December 31
Real future salary growth rate

2016
%

2015
%

2014
%

1.8-3.1
3.1-5.2
0.5-1.0

1.7-3.1
2.9-5.2
0.5-1.0

1.4-2.5
3.0-5.2
0.5-1.0
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans (cont’d)

(3)

Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis (cont’d)
The calculations are based on demographic assumptions as follows:
1)
2)

The assumptions regarding future mortality rates are based on published statistics and
mortality tables.
Employee turnover rates are based on an analysis of historical data.
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below:
December 31
One percentage point increase
One percentage point decrease
2016
2015
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Future salary
growth rate
Discount rate

33
(36)

28
(34)

(29)
42

(26)
37

A change in 10% in the turnover rate would not have a material effect on the defined
benefit obligation.
(4)

Effect of the plan on the Group’s future cash flows
The Group expects NIS 9 million in contributions to be paid to the funded defined benefit plan
in 2017.
The Group estimates the plan’s duration (based on weighted average) to be 10.77 years at the
end of the reporting period (2015: 10.85 years).
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
B.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined contribution plan
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Amount recognized as expense in
respect of defined contribution plans (*)
(*)

44

37

2014
NIS millions

33

The Group has defined contribution plans in respect of part of its employees who are
subject to Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law – 1963 with respect to a certain part of
the obligation. The Group’s contributions in respect of defined contribution plans that
are deposits in respect of employees who are subject to Section 14 are recognized as
expenses in the statement of income.

Note 19 - Other Liabilities

Liability for betterment fee and to the Israel Lands
Administration in respect of investment property
Liability to the Israel Lands Administration in
respect of leased lands
Long-term advance income
Liability to employee in respect of management
retention program

December 31
2016
NIS millions

December 31
2015
NIS millions

38

36

2
12
9

3
15
-

61
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Note 20 - Equity
A.

Share capital
Composition of the share capital: ordinary shares of NIS 0.1 par value
December 31
2016
Number of
shares

400,000,000

Authorized
Issued and paid-in
Balance as of December 31, 2013
Exercise of warrants in 2014
Balance as at December 31, 2015 and 2016

221,114,655
66,667
221,181,322

Treasury shares
B.

8,864,801

Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company:
Date of the
Board of
Directors’
decision to pay
the dividend

The amount of
the dividend
(NIS millions)

Amount after
deduction of
dividend to
a subsidiary
(NIS million)

NIS per share

Feb. 28, 2016

011
011

011
011

14.0
0.47

Feb. 18, 2014

70
70

70
70

Payment date
of the dividend

In 2016:
Apr. 04, 2016

In 2014:
0.33 Mar. 19, 2014
0.33

All the aforesaid distributions were made in cash and did not require court approval.
See Note 34.B regarding the declaration of a dividend distribution by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Note 21 - Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The par value of shares and the profit that were used to calculate the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share are as follows:
Basic earnings (loss) per share
The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share was based on the profit attributable to the Company’s
ordinary shareholders divided by a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated
as follows:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015

Profit (loss) attributable to ordinary
shareholders (in NIS thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousands of shares)
Balance as at January 1
Less treasury shares (see Note 20)
Add options exercised into shares weighted
to the period
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate basic earnings (loss) per share
Basic earnings (loss) per share (in NIS)

2014

262,000

150,000

(110,000)

221,181
(8,865)

221,181
(8,865)

221,115
(8,865)

-

-

50

212,316

212,316

212,300

1.23

0.71

(0.52)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
The calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share was based on profit (loss) attributable to the
Company’s ordinary shareholders divided by a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015

Profit (loss) attributable to ordinary
shareholders (in NIS thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousands of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate basic earnings per share
Add effect of share options not yet exercised
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate diluted earnings (loss) per share
(in NIS)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (in NIS)

2014

262,000

150,000

(110,000)

212,316
398

212,316
-

212,300
-

212,714

212,316

212,300

1.23

0.71

(0.52)
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Note 21 - Earnings (Loss) Per Share (cont’d)
The average market value of the Company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of
share options was based on quoted market prices for the period that the options were outstanding.

Note 22 - Share-Based Payments
In its meeting on November 3, 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors decided to approve as part of
the Company’s “2005 options plan” (as updated in that meeting) an allotment of 5,850,000 options
(hereinafter – “the options”) to the Company’s CEO and six officers of the Company (hereinafter – “the
offerees”). Of those options, 1,800,000 options were allotted to the Company’s CEO and were approved
on December 14, 2015 by the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting. The options are offered to the
offerees according to the plan and according to the provisions of the capital gain track of Section
102(B)(2) (“capital gain track’”) of the Income Tax Ordinance. The options were granted to the offerees
at no cost. The total value of the options at determined at the grant dates is NIS 14 million.
Number of
instruments
(in thousands)

Grant date

Instrument terms

November 3,
2015
(officers) and
December
14, 2015
(CEO)

Each option is exercisable 5,850
into one ordinary share of
NIS 0.1 par value, at an
exercise
price
of
NIS 11.45 (the exercise
price will be dividend
adjusted)

A.

Vest in 3 equal 4 years – first and
portions as from second portions.
November
3, 5 years – third
2016.
portion.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options

Outstanding as at
January 1
Exercised during
the year (1)
Granted during the year
Outstanding as at
December 31 (2)
Exercisable as at
December 31

(1)

Vesting conditions

Contractual life
of options
(in years)

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2016

Number of
options
2016

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2015

11.45

5,850,000

-

-

-

10.98

5,850,000
1,950,000

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2014

Number of
options
2014

-

7.2

66,667

11.45

5,850,000

6.9
-

(66,667)
-

11.45

5,850,000

-

-

Number of
options
2015

-

-

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised in 2014 was
NIS 13.63.
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Note 22 - Share-Based Payments (cont’d)
A.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options (cont’d)

(2)

The exercise price of options outstanding as at December 31, 2016 is NIS 10.98 and the
weighted average contractual life of the outstanding options is 3.18 years.
The exercise price of options outstanding as at December 31, 2015 is NIS 11.45 and the
weighted average contractual life of the outstanding options is 4.18 years.

B.

Information on measurement of fair value of share-based payment plans

The fair value of employee share options is measured using the Black-Scholes formula. Measurement
inputs include the share price on the measurement date, the exercise price of the instrument, expected
volatility (based on the weighted average historic volatility of the Company’s shares, over the expected
term of the options), expected term of the instruments (the life of the options granted to the CEO is
determined on the basis of the assumption that all the options will be exercised on the last date of the
exercise period. The life of the options granted to the other officers is determined on the basis of the
Company’s past experience in previous option plans as regards the average period the officers hold
options) and a risk-free interest rate (on the basis of shekel-denominated Government Bonds with a
remaining life equal to the expected life of the options). Service conditions are not taken into account in
determining fair value.
Equity-settled share-based payment plans
The parameters used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date in 2015 of the equity-settled
share-based payment plans were as follows:

Grant date fair value (in NIS)
Parameters used to calculate the fair value:
Share price (on grant date)
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected life
Risk-free interest rate

C.

Options to
Officers
excluding
the CEO
2016

Options to
the CEO
2016

440.

44.2

00441
004.1
4.40%
24.2
14..%

00401
004.1
4044%
.422
14..%-04.0%

Salary expenses in respect of share-based payment arrangements
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Total expense recognized as salary
expense for share-based payments

8

1

2014
NIS millions

-
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Note 23 - Management of Financial Risks
A.

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:




Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk (including currency risk, interest risk, linkage risk and other price risk)

This note presents qualitative information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, and
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Additional quantitative
disclosure is included in these consolidated financial statements, see Note 24.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Company has an Investment Committee, which is responsible for
establishing the Group’s financial risk management policies and for supervising and monitoring the
application of these policies by management.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group and to monitor these risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group,
through its training and procedures, aims to develop an efficient control environment in which all
relevant employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Investment Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.

B.

Credit risk

Trade and other receivables
The Group does not have significant concentrations of credit risk as a result of the Group’s policy that
ensures that retail sales are usually made in cash or in credit cards, as well as the wide spread of the
Group’s customers that materially reduces the credit risk.
The Group has a procedure for providing customer credit. According to the procedure the customer
provides documents that identify the customer, details of authorized buyers and receives collateral such
as security checks and bank guarantees, personal guarantees or debt notes. Obligo approval authorities
are granted according to credit amounts from the credit manager, finance manager up to the CFO, and
credit customer aging is monitored monthly.
The Group establishes a provision for doubtful debts that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this provision are a specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures. The Group does not test impairment of
trade receivables on a collective basis since such a test is immaterial to the financial statements.
Investments
The Group limits its exposure to investment risk by investing only in rated securities that have a rating
of at least A from Maalot and at least A2 from Midroog Ltd. Additionally, the Group holds short-term
deposits with banks rated AA- to AA+.
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Note 23 - Management of Financial Risks (cont’d)
B.

Credit risk (cont’d)

Derivatives
The counterparties of the derivatives held by the Company are banks rated ilAA/Stable to ilAAA/Stable
based on the rating of S&P Maalot.

C.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risks is to ensure, to the extent possible, that it has
sufficient liquidity to meet it liabilities when due. The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on
demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations. This
excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted

D.

Market risks

The objective of managing market risks is to manage and supervise the exposure to market risks within
acceptable parameters.
In the ordinary course of business the Group buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial
liabilities, in order to manage market risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set
by the Investment Committee.
Currency risk
The Group primarily operates in NIS. It manages its currency exposure that derives from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates in respect of liabilities and cash flows denominated in a foreign
currency with respect to imported goods denominated in dollar and euro. The Group took actions to
reduce the currency exposure by purchased futures contracts. See also Note 24.C regarding forward
balances.
Linkage risk
The Group is exposed to linkage risk mainly in respect of CPI-linked Bonds that were issued by the
Group and CPI-linked rent payments.
Forward contracts:
The Group sometimes hedges the risk inherent in CPI-linked Bonds and CPI-linked rent payments by
executing hedging transactions as decided by the Investment Committee. As at the reporting date, the
Company does not have any balances of futures contracts that are CPI-linked forward contracts.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments
A.

Credit risk

(1)

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amounts of the financial derivatives represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
December 31
2016
2015
Carrying amount in NIS millions

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Other receivables (*)

(*)

519
899
89
1,083
28

746
270
10
1,145
19

1,604

2,190

The balance of other receivables does not include prepaid expenses, advances to
suppliers, inventory with others and insurance assets in the amount of NIS 60 million as
at December 31, 2016 and NIS 50 million as at December 31, 2015.

Composition of the Group’s trade receivables:
December 31
2016
2015
Carrying amount in NIS millions

Credit card companies
Checks and notes receivable
Tenants
Open credit and other, net

959
55
6
65

1,041
42
4
58

1,083

1,145
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
A.

Credit risk (cont’d)

(2)

Aging of debts and impairment losses
The aging of debts of trade receivables is as follows:
December 31
2016

Not past due
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31 days to one year
Past due more than one year

2015

Gross
NIS millions

Provision for
impairment
NIS millions

Gross
NIS millions

Provision for
impairment
NIS millions

1,056
01
09
00

(3)
(1)
(11)

1,138
2
8
13

(1)
(2)
(13)

1,098

(15)

1,161

(16)

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables was as
follows:
December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Impairment loss recognized
Bad debt recognized

(16)
(1)
2

(20)
(1)
5

Balance as at December 31

(15)

(16)

Doubtful debts and impairment losses
Doubtful debts are recorded against a provision for impairment. If the Group is satisfied that
there is no possibility of collecting the debt, the amount that cannot be collected is deducted
from the total amount of the impairment provision against the financial asset. Management of
the Group regularly monitors the customer debts, and the financial statements include
provisions for doubtful debts that appropriately reflect, in the assessment of management, the
loss inherent in debts the collection of which is doubtful.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities and financial instruments at
undiscounted amounts, including principal payments and estimated future interest payments.
December 31, 2016

Financial liabilities (*)
Bonds
Liabilities to banks
in subsidiary
Total

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

485

543

1,730

3,131

2

-

-

-

2

375

485

543

1,730

3,133

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

2,468

373

2
2,470

December 31, 2015

Financial liabilities (*)
Bonds
Liabilities to banks
Capital note from
external shareholders
in subsidiary
Total

(*)

1.
2.

3.

(**)

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

3,124
5

738
3

1,268
2

668
-

960
-

3,634
5

8

-

-

-

8

8

3,137

741

1,270

668

968

3,647

Contractual cash flow includes the effect of the CPI at the reporting date.
Liabilities in respect of trade payables and other payables were not reflected in this
table since these credit balances are paid by the Company up to six months from the
reporting date.
A liability in respect of an option to acquire a partnership, as mentioned in Note 14, in
the overall amount of NIS 159 million was not reflected in the aforesaid table. This
liability is an indefinite agreement with exist points every 18 months.

The carrying amount includes accrued interest.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
C.

Linkage and foreign currency risks

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books
The Group’s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows:
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Current taxes
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Investment in associate
Other investments
Investment property
Fixed assets
Intangible assets and
deferred expenses
Deferred taxes
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of
long-term loans
Current maturities in
respect of Bonds
Trade payables
Other payables
Provisions
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Employee benefits
Other
Liability for option to
acquire partnership
Provisions
Deferred taxes
Non-controlling interests
Equity

Net exposure (*)
(*)

December 31, 2016
Foreign currency
Mainly euro
NIS millions

Other items
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

588
899
8
1,083
22
-

5
5
-

85
-

59
1
588

519
899
89
1,083
18
1
588

54
81
-

-

-

2
595
2,842

88
81
595
2,842

1,670

1

13

145
95
5,073

145
95
6,764

-

2

-

-

2

849
1,787
254
-

895
-

-

402
94

245
1,787
555
94

854
4
854

1,404
-

-

899
52
-

2,173
899
58
854

-

-

-

55
42

55
42

-

-

-

1,315

1,315

3,168
(1,498)

1,511
(1,503)

13

2,085
2,988

6,764
-

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
C.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, that is recorded on the books (cont’d)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Current taxes
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Investment in associate
Other investments
Investment property
Fixed assets
Intangible assets and
deferred expenses
Deferred taxes
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of
long-term loans
Current maturities in
respect of Bonds
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for option to
acquire partnership
Provisions
Non-current liabilities:
Loans to banks and others
Bonds
Employee benefits
Other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred taxes
Non-controlling interests
Equity
Net exposure (**)
*
(**)

December 31, 2015
Foreign currency
Mainly euro
NIS millions

Other items
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

736
270
6
1,145
14
-

4
5
-

10
-

50
32
656

746
270
10
1,145
*69
32
*656

69
15
-

-

-

468
2,801

69
15
468
2,801

2,255

9

10

859
90
4,956

859
90
7,230

-

3

-

-

3

156
1,814
251
055

518
-

-

335

674
1,814
*586
*133

-

-

-

66

66

8
476
-

2
1,974
-

-

131
54
51
88

10
2,450
131
54
51
88

2,838
(583)

2,497
(2,488)

10

9
1,161
1,895
3,061

9
1,161
7,230
-

See Note 2.G regarding reclassification.
The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
C.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis
An increase in the CPI would have affected the equity and the profit or loss at the amounts presented
below. This analysis assumes that other variables remain constant. This analysis does not include offbalance sheet liabilities with regard to the Group’s commitments.
December 31, 2016
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

Increase of 1% in the CPI

(11)

December 31, 2015
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

(15)

(18)

(25)

A decrease in the CPI at the same rate as at December 31 would have the same effect, although in the
opposite direction, assuming that all other variables remain constant.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the dollar/euro is immaterial.
Presented hereunder are the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2016:

Derivative description
Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
Goods
Forward – hedge of imported
Goods

Currency
Receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Dollar

NIS

13

Euro

NIS

4

SWAP - interest rate exchange

*

600
617

Beginning of
transaction

Aug-Dec.
2016
Sep.-Dec.
2016
Aug.-Nov.
2016

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Fair value
NIS millions

Jan.-Jun.
2017
Jan.-Aug.
2017

**-

Oct. 2028

**-

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

Presented hereunder are the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2015:

Derivative description
Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
Goods
Forward – hedge of imported
Goods

*

Currency
Receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Dollar

NIS

8

Euro

NIS

4
12

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

July-Dec.
2015
Sep.-Dec.
2015

Jan.-July
2016
Jan.-Apr.
2016

Fair value
NIS millions

***-

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
D.

Interest rate risk
Interest profile
As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 the Group’s interest-bearing financial
instruments are fixed-rate financial instruments.

E.

Fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value for disclosure purposes only
The carrying amounts of certain financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other receivables, other short-term investments, derivatives, trade payables, other
payables and short-term and long-term loans and borrowing are the same or proximate to their fair
value. The fair values of the Bonds and the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
position, are as follows:
December 31, 2016
Carrying
amount
Fair value
NIS millions
NIS millions

Bonds (including accrued
interest)

2,468

2,630

December 31, 2015
Carrying
amount
Fair value
NIS millions
NIS millions

3,124

3,248

The fair value of the Bonds is their value on the stock exchange (level 1).
Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value
The table hereunder presents the financial assets that are measured at fair value, using a valuation
method.
The various levels are defined as follows:
•
•
•

Level 1: fair value measured by quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.
Level 2: fair value measured by inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: fair value measured by inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
Level 1

Financial assets
Marketable securities
Investment*

*

10
10

December 31, 2016
Level 2
Level 3
NIS millions

-

18
18

Total

Level 1

10
18
28

10
10

December 31, 2015
Level 2
Level 3
NIS millions

-

15
15

Total

10
15
25

An investment in non-marketable shares of Wholesale Market for Agricultural Produce in Tel
Aviv Company Ltd., which is accounted for as a financial asset measured at fair value through
profit or loss. In 2016, the Company received a dividend in the amount of NIS 4 million.
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Note 24 - Financial Instruments (cont’d)
E.

Fair value (cont’d)

Financial assets measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
Presented hereunder is the development in the balance of the investment with respect to a financial
instrument measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

85
(4)
8
81

Balance as at January 1
Dividend received
Gains recognized in profit and loss
Balance as at December 31

12
(3)
6
15

Fair value sensitivity analysis of level 3 financial instruments carried at fair value
In the opinion of management, a reasonably possible change in one or more unobservable inputs would
not have caused a material change in the fair value.

Note 25 - Selling, Marketing, General
A.

Selling and marketing expenses
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Salaries and related expenses
Rent and management fees (*)
Municipal taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Electricity expenses
Advertising and sales promotion
Cleaning and maintenance
Credit fees
Transportation and motor vehicles
Security expenses
Other expenses

(*)

Contingent rent (including changes in the
CPI, in the dollar exchange rate and
a percentage of turnover)

1,038
367
145
237
139
121
173
82
52
36
76

927
372
150
248
153
114
160
83
47
36
95

938
504
153
284
178
104
160
80
47
41
81

2,466

2,385

2,570

76

80

86

77

Convenience translation of original financial statements in Hebrew

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

Note 26 - General and administrative expenses
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Salaries, wages and related expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and computers
Other expenses

47
14
34
57

40
13
33
44

36
11
33
45

152

130

125

Note 27 - Financing Expenses, Net
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Interest and CPI-linkage expenses on Bonds
Expenses on long-term liabilities to banks and
others
Expenses relating to the acquisition of merchandise
on credit
Expense for option to acquire a partnership
Effect of discount of post-employment
benefits plan
Expenses on hedge transactions
Bank expenses and management fees
Expenses on revaluation of marketable securities
and other
Total financing expenses before deduction of
capitalized borrowing costs
Borrowing costs capitalized to qualifying assets
Financing expenses recognized in profit or loss
Income from reversal of impairment on loan
to associate**
Income from revaluation of marketable securities
and other investments
Income from short-term bank deposits
Interest income - income tax
Interest income from marketable securities
Financing income from installment sale
transactions
Interest income from employee benefits plan assets
Income from long-term loans and other
Financing income recognized in profit or loss
Financing expenses, net
*

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

**

See Note 5.A.

(109)

(110)

(152)

(5)

(2)
(4)

(3)

(9)

(8)

(7)

(19)
(4)
(7)

(14)
(5)
(6)

(13)
*(6)

(1)

-

(14)

(154)
(154)

(149)
10
(139)

(195)
7
(188)

-

26

26

7
1
1
*-

2
1
4

3
4
28

8
16
3
36

8
9
2
52

10
9
5
85

(118)

(87)

(103)
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Note 28 - Income Tax
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Group

(1)

Corporate tax rate
Presented hereunder are the tax rates relevant to the Company in the years 2014-2016:
2014 – 26.5%
2015 – 26.5%
2016 - 25%
Current taxes for the reported periods are calculated according to the tax rates presented above.
On January 4, 2016, the Knesset (the Israeli parliament) passed the Law for Amendment of the
Income Tax Ordinance (No. 216), enacting, among other things, a reduction of corporate tax
rate beginning in January 1, 2016 and thereafter to 25%.
Additionally, on December 22, 2016, the Knesset passed the Economic Efficiency Law
(Legislative Amendments for Implementing the Economic Policy for the 2017 and 2018 Budget
Year), 2016, enacting a reduction of corporate tax rate from 25% to 23% in two steps. The first
reduction, to 24%, will be from January 2017, and the second reduction, to 23% will be from
January 2018.
As a result of the reduction of tax rate to 25%, deferred tax balances as of January 4, 2016, were
calculated according to the new tax rate as determined in the law, at the tax rate expected to
apply on the date of reversal.
As a result of tax rate reduction to 23% in two steps, deferred tax balances as of December 31,
2016 were calculated according to new rates as enacted by the Economic Efficiency Law
(Legislative Amendments for Implementing the Economic Policy for the 2017 and 2018 Budget
Year), based on the tax rate expected to apply on the they or reversal.
The impact of the changes described above on the financial statements as of December 31, 2016
is reflected in a reduction of deferred tax liabilities by NIS 10 million and a reduction of
deferred tax assets of NIS 2 million. The update of deferred tax balances was recognized against
deferred tax income at NIS 8 million and against a reduction of other comprehensive income of
NIS 2 million.

(2)

Non-application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for tax purposes
The Company prepares its financial statements beginning on January 1, 2008 in accordance
with IFRS.
IFRS differ from accounting principles generally accepted in Israel and accordingly, the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS may reflect a financial position,
results of operations and cash flows that are materially different from those presented in
financial statements presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Israel.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Group (cont’d)

(2)

Non-application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for tax purposes

(cont’d)
According to temporary provisions that were issued in 2010, 2012 and 2014 (hereinafter - the
temporary provision), the Accounting Standard no. 29 of the Israel Accounting Standards Board
does not apply to the determination of taxable income in 2007-2013, even if IFRS is adopted in
the relevant tax years. The meaning of the temporary provisions is that IFRSs do not apply in
practice when calculating the income reported for tax purposes for the relevant tax years.
In 2014, an updated law memorandum was published in connection with the amendment to the
Income Tax Ordinance (hereinafter - the law memorandum) resulting from application of IFRS
in financial statements. Generally, the law memorandum adopts IFRS. However, its suggests
several amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance that will serve to clarify and determine the
manner of computing taxable income for tax purposes in cases where the manner of
computation is unclear and IFRS is incompatible with the principles of the tax method applied
in Israel. The legislation process involving the law memorandum has not been completed, and
is unlikely to be completed in the near future.
As the legislative process related to the law memorandum has yet to be completed, the
Company's management believes that the temporary provisions for 2007-2013 will be also
extended to 2014-2016. Given that, management believes at this stage that the new legislation
will not apply tax years prior to the 2017 tax years.
(3)

Benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Industry
Gidron Industries Ltd., a subsidiary, qualifies as an “Industrial Company” as defined in the Law
for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes) – 1969 and accordingly it is entitled to, inter alia, to
higher rates of depreciation.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
B.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The movement in deferred tax assets (liabilities) is attributable to the following items:
Vacation
and
recreation

Balance as at January 1, 2015
Changes in 2015
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2015

Employee
benefits

Fixed
and other
assets

Tax
losses
NIS millions

Investment
property

Goodwill
and other
items

11

37

(102)

121

(40)

(1)

26

1

-

(6)

(6)

(1)

(10)

(22)

-

(2)

-

-

-

-

(2)

12

35

(108)

115

(41)

(11)

2

Presented within assets
Presented within liabilities
Total
Balance as at January 1, 2016

Total

90
(88)
2
12

35

(108)

115

(41)

(11)

2

2

3

(3)

(46)

(9)

(3)

(56)

Impact of change in tax rate
Recognized in other
comprehensive income

(1)

(5)

14

(9)

6

3

8

-

1

(1)

-

-

-

-

Balance as at December 31, 2016

13

34

(98)

60

(44)

(11)

(46)

Changes in 2016
Recognized in profit or loss

Presented within assets
Presented within liabilities
Total
C.

46
(92)
(46)

Composition of income tax expense (income)
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current tax expense (income)
Current year
Adjustments for prior years, net
Deferred tax expense (income)
Deferred taxes for prior years
Deferred tax expenses (income), net
Effect of change in tax rate
Total income tax expense (income)

19
1
20

23
1
24

16
(2)
14

(8)
64
(8)
48
68

(2)
24
22
46

5
(51)
(46)
(32)
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
D.

Deferred taxes in respect of other comprehensive income
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Components of deferred taxes in other
comprehensive income
Revaluation reserve for property, plant and
equipment
Tax benefits from remeasurement of
defined benefit plan
Total

E.

1

-

(1)

(1)

(2)

6

-

(2)

5

Reconciliation between the theoretical tax on the pre-tax profit (loss) and the tax expense
(income) included in the statement of income:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
2014
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Profit (loss) before taxes on income, as
reported in the statements of income
Tax rate
Tax calculated according to the tax rate
Additional tax (tax saving) in respect of:
Utilization and creation of tax losses and benefits
from prior years for which deferred taxes were not
created
Neutralization of tax calculated in respect of the
Company’s share in profits of equity accounted
investees
Change in temporary differences for which
deferred taxes were not recognized
Adjustments in respect of previous years, net
Current year tax losses and benefits for which
deferred taxes were not created
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred taxes, net
Others
Income taxes in the statement of income

330

199

(139)

25%

26.5%

26.5%

83

52

(37)

(2)

(2)

-

(1)

-

-

(6)
1

(7)
1

(7)
3

(8)
1

(1)
3

7
2

68

46

(32)
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
I.

Tax assessments

(1)

The Company has received final tax assessments up to and including the 2011 tax year, and all
the amounts the Company is required to pay according to these assessments have been paid in
full until the date of signing the financial statements.

(2)

The Company has final deductions assessments up to and including 2010.

(3)

Subsidiaries have received final tax assessments up to and including the 2010 tax year, and all
the amounts the companies are required to pay according to these assessments have been paid in
full.

G.

Carry-forward tax losses

The Company and subsidiaries have a cumulate business loss for tax purposes in the amount of NIS 215
million (2015: NIS 407 million) for which the Group had created deferred tax assets, and a carryforward capital loss in the amount of NIS 46 million (2015: NIS 42 million).
In accordance with current tax laws, there is no time limitation for utilizing tax losses.

Note 29 - Rentals
The minimum lease payments (excluding additional rent calculated as a percentage of sales turnover
and options to extend contracts) that are leased to the Consumer Price Index, which the Company or its
investee companies are committed to pay, according to the terms in effect at the reporting date are as
follows:
December 31
2016
NIS millions

Years subsequent to the reporting date:
First year
Second year
Third year
Fourth year
Fifth year
Sixth to tenth year
Eleventh to fifteenth year

515
554
219
292
845
519
8
1,830

Including rent to:
Interested parties

898
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A.

Provisions of the Food Law and provisions of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law

In March 2014, the Law for the Promotion of Competition in the Food Industry – 2014 (“the Food
Law”) was published on the Official Gazette. The Food Law includes three sets of provisions: (a)
provisions regulating the activity of suppliers and retailers, including the activity of a large retailer, (b)
provisions regarding geographical competition of retailers, and (c) provisions regulating price
transparency. The law also includes a chapter on enforcement, punishment and monetary sanctions.
The provisions of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law – 1988 (“the Restrictive Trade Practices Law”)
have an effect on the activity of the Shufersal Group mainly as to the possibilities of acquiring retail
operations in the future and regarding the trade arrangements between Shufersal and its suppliers. Upon
the Food Law coming into effect, the trade arrangements between Shufersal and its suppliers are
regulated in detail in the Food Law, which constitutes a special law on the promotion of competition in
the food industry and in the consumer goods market, including those published by the Supervisor
pursuant to the Food Law. In December 2015 the Commissioner issued an opinion regarding the
parallel scope of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law and the Food Law. The opinion provides cases to
which only the provisions of the Food Law shall apply and no additional regulation shall be required in
accordance with the Restrictive Trade Practices Law: arrangements or actions that are exempt in
accordance with Section 7(B) of the Food Law or in accordance with rules that were established in
accordance with Section 7(C) of the Food Law (Shelf Stocking), are not a restrictive arrangement
according to the Restrictive Trade Practices Law and the regulatory framework in the Food Law as
regards shelf stocking is a comprehensive regulatory framework; directives regarding the unnecessity,
in certain circumstances, of submitting a merger notice to the Commissioner when opening a new store
or acquiring an existing store. As at the reporting date, taking into consideration the structure of the
retail market and the legal restrictions that apply to Shufersal, and in view of the provisions of the Food
Law, Shufersal is of the opinion that there is a low probability that the Company will grow by means of
acquiring a significant body in the retail market. Furthermore, the provisions of the Food Law regarding
geographical competition of retailers may affect the ability of the Company to expand by opening new
branches in certain areas, and in certain circumstances the Company may be required to close down
active branches (it is noted that at the reporting date the Company has not been required by the Antitrust
Commissioner to close down any of its branches).
In October 2016, the Company received a revised notice from the Antitrust Authority about catchment
areas of the large stores of the Company ("the catchment area notice"), in relation to such notice that
was received on September 28, 2014 ("the previous notice"). The catchment area notice referred to 132
large stores (instead of 152 stores in the previous notice), with calculated rate (as defined below) of
more than 30% but less than 50%, and 38 large stores (instead of 48 in the previous notice) with
calculated rate of over 50%. The notice was accompanied by maps of catchment areas of those stores.
Note that after reviewing the catchment area maps that were enclosed in the catchment area notice, the
stores that may be exposed to actions under the above temporary provision are as follows: 17 stores in
the Haifa area and 3 stores in the Zefat area. Note that as of the date of this report, the Company was not
required, under the temporary provision, to close any of its stores.
The Company acts in compliance with the Food Law. As of December 31, 2016, the implementation of
the Food Law did not have any material impact on the business of the Company. The impact on the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 was mainly in reclassifications of amounts
that were recognized in selling and marketing expenses prior to the effective date of the law, to the cost
of sales and services item.
On August 31, 2005 the Commissioner published his decision approving the Shufersal-Clubmarket
merger with conditions. That decision imposed a number of restrictions on the Company as follows: it
was forbidden to adopt price lists creating a clear loss for the chain, that are not proportional and are
aimed at taking competitors off the market; it was forbidden to enter into agreements with its suppliers
that limit the ability of those suppliers to engage with competitors of Shufersal; the Company was also
forbidden to interfere with the trade terms established between suppliers and competitors of Shufersal.
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)
B.

Indemnification and insurance of officers

According to the Company’s articles, the Company insures and indemnifies officers in respect of their
liability subject to the provisions of the law and other restrictions.
C.

Guarantees
(1)
(2)

As security for the liabilities of the Company and subsidiaries to various parties, the
Company provided a bank guarantee in the amount of NIS 9 million.
As security for registering a building that was sold in the name of the buyer, the
Company provided bank guarantees in the amount of NIS 2 million.

Note 31 - Liens
As security for the bank liabilities of a subsidiary in the amount of NIS 2 million, the subsidiary created
a senior mortgage of an unlimited amount on its real estate in favor of the bank, and it created a first
fixed lien on its current assets, property, plant and equipment, insurance rights and all its rights to rent
payments due to it from its real estate tenants.

Note 32 - Segment Reporting
The Company implements the instructions of IFRS 8, Operating Segments, in accordance with the
accounting policies presented.
The Company has three reportable segments that are strategic business units. The strategic business
units offer different services and products and the allocation of resources and evaluation of performance
are managed separately.
The reported segments are:
•
The retail segment
•
The real estate segment
•
Management of the credit card customers’ club segment
The retail segment
This segment includes the retail marketing of food and other products in the Company’s branches and
the manufacture of frozen and fresh baked products that are sold mainly in the Company’s branches
(hereinafter – the retail activity).
As at December 31, 2016, the Company’s retail segment activity is carried out in 272 stores having a
wide geographical spread.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
During the reporting period the Company operated four different formats in the retail segment,
including an on-line format “Shufersal Online” and organic food stores, throughout the country, with
the aim of satisfying its customers and providing them a buying experience that differs and varies in
each of the formats operated by the Company.
The Company has a mix of varied products organized in a number of sales departments and subdepartments in each store, including, in the health areas that were placed in part of the Company’s
branches, and it includes, among other things, products sold under the private label of the Company,
with the view of offering the consumer a quality product, strengthening price perception (a quality
product for cheaper prices than similar products in the same category), developing consumer loyalty and
improving profitability of the categories in which the private label is sold.
The area of manufacturing frozen and fresh baked products is operated by a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. This activity is integrated into the retail marketing and its sales are mainly to the
Company stores.
In order to obtain a broad perspective of the system, the review of the segment’s performance includes
the exclusive discounts and campaigns granted to credit card holders as part of management of the
customer club and also the revenues arising from such activity. Accordingly, the results of the customer
club activity, which are presented as the management of credit card customers’ club segment, are also
presented as part of the results of the retail segment since they constitute an integral part of the retail
segment activity.
The real estate segment
This segment includes various types of freehold and leasehold properties including commercial centers
and other properties. The properties include those leased to external parties and also those leased for the
activity of the Company’s branches (it is noted that these branches are classified in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as “property, plant and equipment” and not as investment property,
whereas in the books of Shufersal Real Estate they are classified as investment property).
The segment’s revenues include rental revenues based on actual amounts that the real estate segment
charged the retail segment, and the operating profit of the segment includes also management fees that
were charged to the subsidiaries of the real estate segment.
Credit card customers’ club management segment
This segment includes operating the credit card activity and providing credit by means of credit cards,
providing financial services, providing intermediation and distribution services of various financial
products to the credit card holders and private customers. Operation of the credit card activity is carried
out by means of Leumi Card Ltd. The credit card customers enjoy benefits and discounts that are
granted exclusively to the credit card holders.
The operating results of this segment depend on the investments of the retail segment, the benefits and
discounts granted to the credit card holders.
Reconciliation to consolidated statements
The reconciliation to consolidated financial statements mainly involve neutralizing rental revenues and
expenses of the branches leased by the real estate segment to the retail segment, adding the depreciation
expenses and reversing changes in the fair value of these branches which altogether amount to NIS 14
million. In addition the reconciliation comprises neutralizing the revenues and results from management
of the credit card customers’ club in the amount of NIS 75 million and NIS 47 million, respectively.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below:
For the year ended December 31, 2016:

Total external
revenues
Inter-segment
rental revenues
Segment revenues

Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Credit card
customers’ club
management
segment
NIS millions

11,798

44

75

(75)

11,842

-

126

-

(126)

-

11,798

170

75

(201)

11,842

259

136

-

(23)

372

47

-

47

(47)

47

306

136

47

(70)

419

4

(14)

-

37

27

310

122

47

(33)

446

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

Operating income before other
income (expenses), excluding income
from management of loyalty
program credit card activity
Operating income from
management of loyalty program
credit card activity

Operating profit
before other
income (expenses)
Other income
(expenses), net
Operating profit
after other
income (expenses)
Financing
Expenses
Financing
income
Share in profit of
investee,
accounted for
using the equity
method
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

(154)
36

2
(68)
262
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
* On January 1, 2017, the Company and Shufersal Real Estate engaged in a framework agreement
(which replaced agreement that existed up to that date). The agreement provided that the Company will
continue to lease from Shufersal Real Estate the same properties (mainly branches) that it is using ("the
framework agreement"). According to the framework agreement, the branches are leased to the
Company on an "as-is" basis for an 8-year period with two option periods of 8 years and 8 years. In
addition, the framework agreement updated lease payments and management fee paid by Shufersal to
Shufersal Real Estate. The impact of the agreement on the value of investment property of the Real
Estate segment was NIS 40 million, the decrease in the fair value was recognized in other income
(expenses).
For the year ended December 31, 2015:

Total external
Revenues
Inter-segment
rental revenues
Segment revenues
Operating income
before other
income (expenses)
excluding income
from management
of loyalty program
credit card
activity*
Operating income
from management
of loyalty program
credit card
activity*
Operating profit
before other
income (expenses)
Other income
(expenses), net
Operating profit
after other
income (expenses)
Financing
expenses
Financing
income
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Credit card
customers’ club
management
segment
NIS millions

11,456

49

67

(67)

11,505

-

131

-

(131)

-

11,456

180

67

(198)

11,505

107

149

-

(26)

230

44

-

44

(44)

44

151

149

44

(70)

274

(4)

1

-

15

12

147

150

44

(55)

286

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

(139)
52
(46)
153

* Reclassified
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2014:

Total external
revenues
Inter-segment
rental revenues
Segment revenues
Operating income
before other
income (expenses)
excluding income
from management
of loyalty program
credit card
activity*
Operating income
from management
of loyalty program
credit card activity
Operating income
before other
income (expenses)
Other income
(expenses), net
Operating income
after other
income (expenses)

Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Credit card
customers’ club
management
segment
NIS millions

11,553

49

63

(63)

11,602

-

129

-

(129)

-

11,553

178

63

(192)

11,602

(208)

148

-

(24)

(84)

37

-

37

(37)

37

**(171)

148

37

(61)

(47)

1

25

-

(15)

11

(170)

173

37

(76)

(36)

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

Financing
expenses
Financing
income
Taxes on income
Profit for the year
*
**

(188)
85
32
(107)

Reclassified
Including non-recurring expenses in the amount of NIS 184 million (see Note 1.B.1).
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Information regarding products
Presented hereunder are the Group’s sales revenues from each group of similar products in the retail
segment in NIS millions, before discounts and without VAT.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

“Grocery” products which include various food products but not milk and dairy products and
beverages.
“Beverages”.
“Dairy” products which include milk and dairy products.
“Meat and frozen” products which include fresh and frozen meat and fish products and products
sold at meat counters.
“Vegetable and fruit” products which include various fruits and vegetables and dried fruits.
“Pharmacy” products which include, inter alia, cleaning and paper products, medicine,
cosmetics and baby products.
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Grocery
Beverages
Dairy
Meat and frozen
Vegetables and fruit
Pharmacy

2,970
737
1,532
1,731
1,615
1,385

3,051
758
1,594
1,769
1,748
1,449

2014
NIS millions

3,015
764
1,547
1,726
1,512
1,419

Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties
A.

Balances with interested and related parties

Current assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables
Other receivables – prepaid expenses*
Other receivables – insurance assets
Trade payables
Other payables – accrued expenses
Non-current assets and liabilities:
Right to reimbursement in respect of employee benefits
Defined benefit plan assets
*

December 31, 2016
NIS millions

December 31, 2015
NIS millions

8
89
(25)
(3)

1
4
16
(5)
(3)

29
89

19
14

The highest balance during the reporting period (on the basis of monthly closing balances) was
NIS 7 million.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
B.

Loan granted to associate company

As at December 31, 2016, the balance of a loan to an associate company amounts to NIS 83 million.
The loan bears interest according to Section 3(J) to the Income Tax Ordinance. In the reporting period
the nominal interest rate was 2.56%. The loan’s payment date has not yet been determined. Financing
income in the amount of NIS 2 million was recognized in respect of the loan in 2016 (in 2015 and 2014:
NIS 3 million).
See Note 5(a) regarding investments in an associate company.

C.

Transactions with interested and related parties

In the ordinary course of business the Company and its subsidiaries execute transactions at market terms
with interested parties, including transactions of the types and characteristics indicated hereunder:
The Company’s principal interested party groups are, inter alia, the IDB Group and the Bronfman
Fischer Group* and the companies held by them.
* The Bronfman Fischer group ceased to be a related party in December 2016.
For information about the change of shareholding, see note 1(b)(9).
Presented hereunder is a general description of the transactions executed with interested parties of the
Company:
Year ended December 31
2016
2015
NIS millions
NIS millions

Revenues (1)
Expenses (2)
Financing income from defined benefit plan assets
Financing income from loan granted to associate

17
(140)
2

21
(189)
3

2014
NIS millions

13
(228)
1
3
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties (cont’d)

(1)

Composition of revenues:

For the year ended
December 31, 2016:
Revenues from vouchers’ activity
Revenues from rental and
operation of shopping malls
and other
For the year ended
December 31, 2015:
Revenues from vouchers’ activity
Revenues from rental and
operation of shopping malls
and other
For the year ended
December 31, 2014:
Revenues from vouchers’ activity
Revenues from rental and
operation of shopping malls
and other
Total
*

IDB
Group
NIS millions

Bronfman
Fisher Group
NIS millions

Other
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

85

5

*-

85

85

8
9

*-

8
88

13

3

4

20

13

1
4

4

1
21

6

7

*-

13

*6

7

*-

*03

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties (cont’d)

(2)

Composition of expenses:

For the year ended
December 31, 2016:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses
For the year ended
December 31, 2015:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

For the year ended
December 31, 2014:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

IDB
Group
NIS millions

Bronfman
Fisher Group
NIS millions

Other
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

59

-

59

19

55
895

5
5

59

59
899

42

22

40

104

79
121

6
28

40

85
189

40

99

-

139

88
128

1
100

-

89
228

Throughout the year the Company executed a large number of transactions with interested and related
party suppliers and service providers from the IDB and Bronfman and Fisher groups. The transactions
included purchasing food and other products at market terms. The prices and credits terms are
determined with all the suppliers and service providers in negotiations and in the ordinary course of
business and according to the Company’s procedures.
(3)

Guarantees and liens of the entity with respect to debts of related and interested parties, see
Note 30 contingent liabilities and commitments, and Note 31 liens.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
D.

Salary, management fees and benefits to key management personnel (including directors)

In addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to directors and executive
officers that are employed by the Group (such as a car, etc.), and contributes to a post-employment
defined benefit plan on their behalf. Certain executive officers have been allotted options to shares of
the Company (see Note 22 regarding share-based payments).
Salary, management fees and benefits to key management personnel and interested parties (two joint
chairmen of the board and the CEO) include as follows:
2016

Short-term salary, management
fees and benefits to key
management personnel
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

Number
of people

NIS millions

3
1

6
3

Year ended December 31
2015
Number
of people
NIS millions

3
3
3

NIS millions

3
3
3

4
*-

6

9
*

6
**-

2014
Number
of people

4

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

Directors’ fees – *without the two joint chairmen (stepped down during the period) and without present
chairman of the board:
2016
Number
of people

NIS millions

17

3

Year ended December 31
2015
Number
of people
NIS millions

12

3

2014
Number
of people

NIS millions

18

2

On March 19, 2015 the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting approved extending the Company’s
engagement with Mr. Bisker with a reduction in his terms of employment (his salary will amount to
NIS 55,000 per month linked to the CPI in respect of December 2014) and a change in his eligibility to
a bonus according to the Company’s compensation policy that in no case shall exceed 6 salaries. It is
also noted that the engagement with Mr. Fisher was not extended and therefore as from January 1, 2015
Mr. Fisher is not entitled to a salary for his service as joint chairman of the board but only to directors’
remuneration like the other directors in the Company (other than Mr. Bisker as aforesaid).
On February 28, 2016, Mr. Rafi Bisker gave notice that he is concluding his service as director and joint
Chairman of the Board, and the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Israel Berman as a director and joint
Chairman of the Board in the Company.
On September 12, 2016, Mr. Yaakov Shalom Fischer notified that he will step down as directors and
Joint Chairman of the Company. In addition, during the reported period, 5 more directors notified that
they were stepping down.
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Note 34 - Subsequent Events
A.

On February 9, 2017, subsequent to the reporting date, the board of directors of a subsidiary
decided to distribute a dividend in the amount of NIS 20 million.

B.

On February 21, 2017, subsequent to the reporting date, the Company’s Board of Directors
decided to distribute a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million, constituting NIS 0.75 per
share. The dividend will be paid on April 4, 2017 to shareholders on record as at March 21,
2017. No liability was recorded in the financial statements in respect of the aforesaid dividend.

Note 35 - Group Entities
December 31, 2016
Rate of
ownership
Voting rate
%
%

December 31, 2015
Rate of
ownership
Voting rate
%
%

Active subsidiaries
Katif Ltd.
Gidron Industries Ltd.
Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.
Orvani Investment Co. Ltd.*
Shufersal Properties Ltd.*
Hanetz Exporters and Importers Ltd.*
Hyper-Kol Ltd.*
Four Species Ltd.
Shufersal Bailsol Investments Ltd.*

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
50

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
51

Consolidated partnerships
Shufersal Finance, Limited Partnership

64

64

64

64

Associate
Lev Hamifratz Ltd.*

37

37

37

37

Joint venture
Shufersal Real Estate Avi Zur Israel –
Joint Venture

50

50

50

50

*

Held by Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.

All the companies were incorporated in Israel.
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